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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 21 OCTOBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh ,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Cha i rpe rson we  tu rn  now to  tha t  par t  o f  

our  ev idence dur ing  th is  s i t t ing  dea l ing  w i th  locomot ives .   

A great  dea l  o f  ev idence has been g iven in  re la t ion  to  the  10 

acqu is i t ion  o f  locomot ives  by  Transnet .    

The ev idence tha t  we in tend lead ing  re la tes  in  

par t i cu la r  to  the  1064 the  locomot ion  acqu is i t ion  and the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  100  e lec t r i c  locomot ives .  

 You w i l l  reca l l  Mr  Cha i rman tha t  in  respect  o f  the  

1064 locomot ives  tha t  was sp l i t  be tween d iese l  and e lec t r i c  

the  d iese l  award  went  to  GE and Ch ina  Nor th  Ra i l  –  CNR.   

The e lec t r i c  award  went  to  Bombadie r  and CSR –  Ch ina  

South  Ra i l  and tha t  occur red  in  approx imate l y  March o f  

2014.    20 

 You know and w i l l  reca l l  tha t  the  cont rac t  va lue  was  

an enormous approx imate ly  R50  b i l l i on .   To  da te  a  vast  

number  o f  w i tnesses have g i ven ev idence.   What  has come 

to  l igh t  were  i r regu la r i t ies  in  re la t ion  to  what  was repor ted  

to  the  board  v i s -à-v i s  the  bus iness case,  i r regu lar i t ies  in  
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re la t ion  to  the  p r ic ing  o f  the  locomot ives  and the  tender  

p rocess.  

 I f  –  there  has a lso  been ev idence in  re la t ion  to  

po ten t ia l  i r regu lar i t ies  re la t ing  to  the  re loca t ion  o f  the  

OME’s  f rom Gauteng to  Durban.   That  i s  the  1064 

locomot ives .  

 In  respect  o f  the  100 e lec t r i ca l  –  e lec t r i c  

locomot ives  yes  ev idence has been g iven.   You w i l l  

remember  tha t  th is  was an award  made on conf inement  to  

CSR the  cont rac t  va lue  was approx imate ly  R4.5  b i l l i on .   10 

And much o f  the  ev idence in  re la t ion  to  the  100  e lec t r i c  

locomot ives  goes to  i r regu lar i t i es  in  re la t ion  to  the 

conf inement  to  CSR and how tha t  came about .  

 We in tend to  lead two w i tnesses.   The f i rs t  w i tness 

is  Mr  Laher  –  the  second w i tness is  Mr  Ca l la rd .  

 Mr  Laher  f inds  h is  way to  the  commiss ion  as  a  

consequence o f  hav ing  been imp l i ca ted  in  ce r ta in  respects  

by  Mr  Ca l la rd  in  h is  ev idence.   Mr  Laher  then brought  a 

Ru le  3 .4  app l i ca t ion  wh ich  was granted by  you Mr  

Cha i rman and you a l lowed to  submi t  a  s ta tement  o r  an  20 

a f f idav i t  and to  g ive  o ra l  ev idence.  

 In  h is  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  he  makes re ference to  a 

pr io r  s ta tement  and he wants  them to  be  read together  so  

i t  i s  what  I  re fe r  to  as  h i s  main  s ta tement  w i l l  be  t raversed,  

h is  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  w i l l  be  t raversed and then more  
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recent ly  he  has g iven a  shor t  supp lementary  s ta tement .   So 

he w i l l  dea l  w i th  those th ree  th ings .  

 Mr  Ca l la rd  i s  then due to  g ive  ev idence in  re la t ion  

to  two new issues tha t  he  has come across subsequent  to  

the  ev idence tha t  he  gave before  you.  

 So w i th  tha t  by  way o f  background Mr  Cha i rperson 

may I  ca l l  Mr  Laher?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  10 

MR LAHER:   Yousuf  I smai l  Laher.  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you have any … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  p lease w i l l  you  ra i se  your  

vo i ce .  

MR LAHER:   Yousuf  I smai l  Laher.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  

MR LAHER:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  20 

e lse  bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  

say,  I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

MR LAHER:   I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   You may be seated Mr  Laher.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you Mr  Cha i rpe rson.   The 
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document  re levant  to  Mr  Laher ’s  ev idence are  found in  

Bund le  4 [a ]  and 4 [b ] .   Mr  Laher  do  you have Bund le  4 [a ]  in  

f ron t  o f  you?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  Tab 

BB4[ f ] .   I t  shou ld  be  the  las t  tab  in  tha t  f i l e .  BB4[ f ] .1 .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   May I  take  you then p lease to  page 221.   

Do you conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  a  s ta tement  tha t  you gave… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh I  am s t i l l  t ry ing  to  10 

–  you sa id  the  tag  is  BB? 

ADV MYBURGH:   BB4[ f ] .   The las t  tab  in  Bund le  4 [a ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  no t  seem to  have 4 [ f ] .   I  have got  

what  looks l i ke  BB what?   I  am not  sure .   But  the  las t  –  the  

s ta tement  tha t  comes immedia te l y  a f te r  the  las t  tag  is  

B ie rman ’s  s ta tement  on  m ine.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Bu t  then –  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am look ing  a t  4 .   I  am look ing  a t  –  oh  I  

am sor ry  i t  looks  l i ke  I  am look ing  a t  4 [b ] .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  th ink  you are  in  F i le  [b ] .  Yes I  am sor ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr  Cha i rperson  there  are  two Bund le  4 .   

There  is  the  4 [a ]  and then 4 [b ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   No I  th ink  I  have been g iven  

4 [a ] .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   I f  one goes to  the  las t  tab .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes now I  can see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   In  th is  f i l e  wh ich  is  4 [a ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   There  you w i l l  f ind  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f ] .1 .   And 

then cou ld  I  ask  you p lease Mr  Laher  to  tu rn  to  page  221.  

MR LAHER:   I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And wou ld  you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  your  

s ta tement?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t  i t  i s  my s ta tement .  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  you tu rn  fo rward  to  page  240 do 

you conf i rm tha t  you s igned th is  s ta tement  on  the  15  Apr i l  

2019?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A t tached to  tha t  s ta tement  was a  ser ies  

o f  annexures wh ich  run  a l l  the  way  th rough to  page 500.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wou ld  you conf i rm tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease to  now tu rn  20 

to  Bund le  4 [b ]  tha t  i s  the  s l immer  f i le .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you th ink  we cou ld  manage w i thout  

the  a i r  cond i t ione r?  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  beg your  pa rdon Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you th ink  we  can manage w i thout  the  
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a i r  cond i t ioner?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes I  th ink  we can.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A t  leas t  un t i l  i t  ge ts  ho t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  I t  makes some no ise .   So i f  you  can 

e i ther  swi tch  i t  o f f  o r  tu rn  i t  down cons iderab ly.   Okay 

a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   R igh t  Mr  Laher  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  in  the  course  o f  the  day becomes  

too  ho t  we can a lways swi tch  i t  on .  10 

MR LAHER:   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:   In  Bund le  4 [b ]  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  tu rn  

to  the  f i rs t  document  tha t  i s  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f ] .2 .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  you go to  page  502 you w i l l  see  

tha t  th is  conta ins  your  –  your  Ru le  3 .4  app l i ca t ion .   As  you 

see f rom the  index.   A t  502.  

MR LAHER:     Ja  I  see the  index.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease –  you  shou ld  

have a  tab  wh ich  re f lec ts  s ta tement  –  cou ld  you tu rn  

fo rward  to  page 504.    

MR LAHER:   I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH:   You conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  another  
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s ta tement  by  you? 

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   E f fec t i ve ly  your  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement .  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  you tu rn  fo rward  to  page 521  

wou ld  you conf i rm tha t  you s igned tha t  s ta tement  on  the  18  

June 2019?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Th i s  s ta tement… 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say 521? 10 

ADV MYBURGH:   521 yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   One second.   Yes.   The prev ious  

s ta tement  you d id  no t  say  i t  was  a t  503.4  he?  Because 

tha t  –  I  have got  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  s ta tement  there  so  I  suspect  

I  have –  went  to  a  wrong page.   The one you – you  s ta r ted  

w i th  on  th is  bund le .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr  Cha i rman are  you in  the  4 [b ]  bund le  –  

the  s l immer  one?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  4 [b ]  ja .   The  f i rs t  s ta tement  tha t  you  

re fer red  h im to  on  th is  bund le  was  i t  no t  –  d id  you not  say  20 

i t  i s  a t  503? 

ADV MYBURGH:   503.1 .  i s  the  Ru le  3 .3  Not ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you re fe r red  h im to  the  Ru le  3 .3  

Not ice .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay not  tha t  s ta tement .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  tha t  i s  the  Ru le  3 .3  Not ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:   That  i s  pag ina ted … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  fo l lowed w i th  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

s ta tement?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes a l l  the  way to  503.85.  

CHAIRPERSON:   503.85.   Okay.  Okay yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then a f te r  tha t  there  i s  a  f lag  504.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   And tha t  i s  Mr  Laher ’s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no ,  no .   Now I  have got  i t  r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   3 .4  s ta tement .   I  am sor ry  fo r  the 

confus ion  as  you  wou ld  have p i cked up Mr  Cha i rman what  

happened is  the  3 .3  was issued together  w i th  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  i t  i s  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   yes .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then comes Mr  Laher ’s  3 .4  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:   S ta tement .   So tha t  i s  f rom 504 up to  521  

and you have conf i rmed tha t  you have s igned tha t  on  the 

18  June 2019?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   That  too  was accompanied by  a  ser ies  o f  

annexures tha t  runs up  unt i l  page 730 wou ld  you  conf i rm  

tha t?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then d i rec t l y  a f te r  tha t  a t  731 you  

f ind  the  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f ] .3 .   And i f  I  cou ld  take  you to  page  

733 wou ld  you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  your  supp lementa ry  

s ta tement?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  you go  to  page 739 tha t  you 10 

s igned tha t  supp lementary  s ta tement  on  the  16  September  

2020.  

MR LAHER:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And i t  too  conta ined a  number  o f  

annexures tha t  run  up  unt i l  page 791.  

MR LAHER:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr  Cha i rperson  cou ld  I  then and I  dea l  

w i th  each o f  these sequent ia l l y  i f  one backs to  Bund le  4 [a ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   What  I  re fe r  to  as  Mr  Laher ’s  main  20 

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You see s igned on the  15  Apr i l  2019 tha t  

a t  page 240.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  one s tar t ing  a t  221?  
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ADV MYBURGH:   221 to  240.   I  wou ld  ask  you to  admi t  

tha t  as  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f ] .1  

CHAIRPERSON:   The s ta tement  by  Mr  Laher  s ta r t ing  a t  

page 221 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f .1 ] .   I s  tha t  r igh t?   Mr  

Myburgh d id  I  ge t  i t  r igh t?   [ f .1 ]  in  b rackets .  

ADV MYBURGH:   In  b rackets  [ f .1 ]  yes  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then i f  we can tu rn  to  Bund le  4 [b ] .   

There  you f ind  Mr  Laher ’s  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  a t  page 504  

runn ing  to  521 s igned on 18 June  2019.   Cou ld  I  ask  you 10 

Mr  Cha i rperson to  admi t  tha t  as  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f .2 ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  in  b rackets?  

ADV MYBURGH:   BB4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   In  b rackets  [4 f .2 ]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The s ta tement  by  Mr  Laher  

s ta r t ing  a t  page 504 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f .2 ] .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then f ina l l y  Mr  Cha i rperson in  the  

same bund le  the  supp lementary  s ta tement  o f  Mr  Laher  

runn ing  f rom o r  commencing  a t  733 s igned on  the  16 20 

September  2020  cou ld  you p lease admi t  tha t  as  Exh ib i t  

BB4[ f ] .3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The supp lementa ry  s ta tement  o f  Mr  Laher  

s ta r t ing  a t  page 733 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  BB4[ f .3 ] .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Mr  Laher  as  I  
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ment ioned in  my  open ing  remarks  you f ind  your  way here  

as  a  w i tness as  a  consequence tha t  hav ing  been imp l ica ted  

by  Mr  Ca l la rd  and hav ing  brought  a  3 .4  app l i ca t ion  

a t tached to  wh ich  was a  s ta tement  and I  w i l l  re fe r  to  tha t  

as  your  3 .4  s ta tement ,  the  second  one in  the  chrono logy.   

 In  tha t  s ta tement  you sought  leave to  re ly  on  your  

in i t ia l  s ta tement  wh ich  I  w i l l  re fe r  to  as  your  main  

s ta tement  and fo r  them to  be  read together.   And  then more 

recent ly  you have  prov ided a  supp lementary  s ta tement .   So 

main  s ta tement ,  ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  and supp lementary  10 

s ta tement .  

 Before  we get  to  the  –  the  hear t  o f  your  ev idence  

wh ich  i s  rea l l y  your  response to  Mr  Ca l l a rd ’s  imp l i ca t ion  o f  

you le t  us  dea l  w i th  your  main  s ta tement  wh ich  you gave 

before  then.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now as I  have exp la ined to  you  and as  

you know th is  commiss ion  has  heard  a  great  dea l  o f  

ev idence in  re la t ion  to  locomot ives  and i t  cer ta in ly  i s  no t  

our  in ten t ion  to  rehash tha t  he re  today more  than needs 20 

be.  

 So i f  you  tu rn  p lease to  your  main  s ta tement  a t  

Bund le  4 [a ]  page 221.   A re  you the re?  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  have asked you in  the  course  o f  our  
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p repara t ions to  h igh l igh t  and to  focus in  on  what  you  

cons idered to  be  key issues.  

MR LAHER:   R igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And I  am go ing  to  take  you to  those key  

issues in  your  main  s ta tement ,  key  issues i n  your  

supp lementary  s ta tement  and tha t  w i l l  e f fec t i ve ly  bookend 

your  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  and then we w i l l  go  to  tha t .  

 So le t  me s tar t  o f f  by  ask ing  you in  re la t ion  to  the  

1064 locomot ives  what  ro le  d id  you p lay  in  the  tender  

p rocess?  10 

MR LAHER:   Morn ing  Cha i r.   Thank you fo r  th is  

oppor tun i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Morn ing .  

MR LAHER:   To  present  my ev idence to  the  commiss ion .  

The ro le  I  p layed in  th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  fo r  1064 was 

I  was i nvo lved  in  the  eva lua t ion  team – the  cross-

funct iona l  eva lua t ion  team f inance wh ich  d id  the  eva lua t ion  

o f  the  f inanc ia l  e lements  o f  the  tender.   I  was a l so  then 

invo lved as  pa r t  o f  the  f inance suppor t  team dur ing  the  

negot ia t ions  suppor t ing  the  Cha i rpersons o f  the  20 

negot ia t ions  fo r  the  1064 t ransact ions.   P r imar i l y  those are  

my main  invo lvements  in  th is  t ransact ion .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  there  you were  invo lved as  par t  o f  the 

f inance eva lua t ion  team and you were  par t  o f  the 

negot ia t ion  team? 
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MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   In  re la t ion  to  the  100 e lec t r i c  

locomot ives  what  was your  ro le  there?  

MR LAHER:   In  the  100 negot ia t ions  I  was invo lved  as  par t  

o f  the  negot ia t ing  team a t  the  ve ry  las t  m inute  so  I  was not  

ac tua l l y  appo in ted  in to  the  team but  I  was asked to  go  and 

a t tend the  negot ia t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  d i f fe ren t  to  seems a l l  the  o ther  

w i tnesses tha t  have tes t i f ied  in  re la t ion  to  the  locomot ives  

you have f i rs t -hand knowledge o f  what  happened  dur ing  10 

the  course  o f  the  negot ia t ions  in  re la t ion  to  the  1064 

locomot ives  and the  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t  I  am the  eyew i tness.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now your  main  s ta tement  wh ich  we w i l l  

go  th rough now I  wou ld  jus t  ask  you to  conf i rm i t  dea ls  

exc lus ive ly  w i th  the  1064 locomot ives .   I t  does not  dea l  

w i th  the  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  i f  you  go to  page 221 you have the  

head ing  Locomot ive  Tender  and you then dea l  w i th  the  20 

bus iness case a l l  o f  th is  the  commiss ion  has a l ready heard  

about  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  address these in  par t i cu la r  

parag raph 13.  

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  dur ing  the  negot ia t ion  process  wh ich  

was around February /March 2014 I  adv ised Mr  S ingh very  
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spec i f i ca l l y  tha t  th is  p roposed t ransact ion  was go ing  to  

increase o r  was  go ing  to  exceed the  ETC tha t  was  

approved by  the  board .   A t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime Mr  S ingh to ld  

me he wou ld  dea l  w i th  i t .   Wi th  the  [00 :21 :20]  I  was not  

invo l ved in  the  ac tua l  ETC process or  the  approva l  

p rocess.   I  on ly  go t  to ld  a t  the  s ta r t  so  towards s ta r t  o f  the 

negot ia t ions  th is  i s  what  the  board  has approved in  te rms  

o f  the  ETC.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Then you go on to  dea l  w i th  p repara t ion  

o f  f inanc ia l  eva lua t ion  c r i te r ia .   Over  the  page s tage  2  pre-10 

qua l i f i ca t ion  eva lua t ion  o f  b ids  rece ived.  Then a t  page 226 

s tage 6  eva lua t ion  o f  b ids  rece ived.   And i t  i s  there  tha t  

you have ind i ca t ion  to  me tha t  you w ish  to  focus on  

paragraph 30 a t  page 228 tha t  be ing  under  the  head ing  

S tage 6  Eva lua t ion  o f  B ids  Rece ived.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   P lease go ahead and dea l  w i th  tha t  

parag raph?  

MR LAHER:   So  Cha i r  as  par t  o f  the  eva lua t ion  team we 

prepared two repor ts  –  one fo r  the  e lec t r i c  tender  and one 20 

fo r  the  d iese l  tender.   Those repor ts  were  addressed to  Mr  

J iyane fo r  h im to  take  to  the  locomot ive  s teer ing  commi t tee  

and to  ge t  approva l  o f  our  eva lua t ion .    

 Wi th in  tha t  repor t  jus t  be fore  I  s ta r t  w i th in  the  

repor t .   There  were  s i x  o f  us  in  the  eva lua t ion  team.   
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Myse l f  and f i ve  o f  my co l leagues .   Wi th in  the  repor t  we  

h igh l igh ted  a  number  o f  r i sks  and a  number  o f  mat te rs  we  

wanted to  be  taken up to  the  s tee r ing  commi t tee  and a l so  

in  ce r ta in  ins tances to  the  board  to  make them aware  tha t  

our  r i sks  w i th  eva lua t ion  and wha t  you w i l l  see  is  the  r i sks  

tha t  we ra i sed in  tha t  repor t  e f fec t i ve l y  came home to  roost  

when the  p r ic ing  f ina l l y  was f ina l l y  agreed to .   

 I f  I  can  go in to  more  de ta i l  then –  and s tar t  jus t  

ta lk ing  about  what  r i sks  he re  is .   So on 30.1  so  f i rs t l y  the  

repor t  sa id  the  –  tha t  these r i sks  must  be  communica ted  to  10 

the  SC commi t tee  and or  the  Transnet  board  and 

cons idered pr io r  to  f ina l  award  o f  the  cont rac t .  And we had 

some r isks  and I  th ink  I  am go ing  to  h igh l igh t  the  main  

r i sks  f rom tha t  repor t .  

 So the  f i rs t  r i sk  we h igh l igh ted  was  when we d id  the  

eva lua t ion  on  pr i ce  spec i f i ca l l y  the  eva lua t ion  was done on 

the  bas i s  o f  no t  inc lud ing  hedg ing  costs  and esca la t ion  

costs .  

 The eva lua t ion  c r i te r ia  tha t  were  handed to  us  sa id  

tha t  we must  eva lua te  i nc lud ing  hedg ing  cos ts  and  20 

esca la t ion  costs .   Whi ls t  we  were  conduct ing  the  

eva lua t ions a  number  o f  b idders  responded.   Some b idders  

responded w i th  hedg ing  costs  and  esca la t ion  costs ,  some 

b idders  d id  no t  respond w i th  hedg ing  costs  and esca la t ion  

costs .  
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 So  we went  back  to  Supp ly  Cha in  Serv i ces ,  Supp ly  

Cha in  Serv ices  were  charge o f  the  process.   Mr  J iyane and  

Ms Mdle tshe were  in  charge o f  Supp ly  Cha in  Serv i ces .   We 

went  back to  them to  say as  a  team we cannot  eva lua te  

th is  tender  f rom a  pr ice  perspec t ive  because we  cannot  

eva lua te  app les  w i th  app les .   Some were  g iv ing  us  w i th  

hedg ing  and esca la t ion  and some were  g iv ing  us  w i thout  

hedg ing  and esca la t ion  –  what  do  you want  us  to  do?  

 The i r  response was do the  eva lua t ions w i thout  the  

hedg ing  and esca la t ion  costs .   Our  v iew as a  team before  – 10 

before  we reached tha t  po in t  was we wanted to  go  ou t  and 

c la r i f i ca t ion .   So we d id  request  f rom Supp ly  Cha in  

Serv i ces  tha t  we  go back to  a l l  o f  the  r i sks  and request  

tha t  they c la r i f y  what  the  cost  o f  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  

wou ld  be  so  tha t  we cou ld  eva lua te  w i th  the  pr ice  inc lud ing  

hedg ing  and esca la t ion .  

 For  us  as  a  c ross- funct ion  eva lua t ion  team we  

be l ieve  tha t  wou ld  be  a  fa i re r  way o f  do ing  eva lua t ions.   

The adv ice  g iven  to  us  by  Supp ly  Cha in  Serv ices  was we  

do not  want  to  go  ou t  and  c la r i f i ca t ion  Mr  J iyane  20 

spec i f i ca l l y  and the  reason he sa id  he  does not  want  to  go  

ou t  and c la r i f i ca t ion  is  because i t  opens up the  tender  to  

b idders  chang ing  the i r  p r i ces ,  a lso  ex tends the  t ime f rame 

o f  the  eva lua t ion  and crea tes  a  poss ib le  fu r the r  ambigu i ty.  

 Based on h i s  response or  Supp ly  Cha in  Serv ices  
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response to  us  we then ag reed to  as  a  team to  do  the 

eva lua t ion  w i thout  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  costs  w i th  the  

prov iso  and tha t  p rov iso  is  captured in  ou r  repor t  w i th  the  

prov iso  tha t  tha t  po in t  o r  tha t  mat te r  o r  –  and tha t  r i sk  we  

brought  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  board  and the  Transnet  

s tee r ing  commi t tee  so  tha t  they  no te  the  impor tance o f  

tha t .  

 Our  v iew was tha t  cos t  o f  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  

cou ld  have a  mater ia l  impact  on  the  pr i ce  and we  ra ised  

tha t  r i sk  r igh t  up  f ron t  w i th  – w i th  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  10 

and we wanted i t  to  be  esca la ted  to  the  Transnet  board .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Then the  second  r i sk  a t  30 .2 .  

MR LAHER:   Cha i r  we ra i sed a  number  o f  r i sks  and the  

second r i sk  we ra ised –  and I  th ink  these –  I  want  to  b r ing  

th is  as  ev idence  to  the  commiss ion  because I  th ink  i t  i s  

impor tan t  to  unders tand  tha t  these r i sks  were  ra ised r i gh t  

up  f ron t .  

 The second r i sk  tha t  we ra i sed in  our  repor t  to  the  

s tee r ing  commi t tee  was around the  eva lua t ion  be ing  done  

on a  fu l l  ba t ch  o f  1299 locomot ives  fo r  e lec t r i c  tender  and 20 

a  fu l l  ba tch  o f  465 locomot ives  fo r  the  d iese l  tender.  

 I t  was done on a  smal le r  ba tch  and the  r i sk  tha t  we 

wanted to  ra ise  is  we wanted to  – board  or  the  commi t tee  

to  cons ider  th is  because i f  the  ba tch  s ize  ge ts  reduced  

then the  p r ice  o f  the  locomot ive  w i l l  change.   And i f  the 
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p r i ce  o f  the  locomot ive  changes i t  a f fec ts  the  eva lua t ion .   

So the  eva lua t i on  resu l ts  w i l l  no t  be  –  w i l l  no t  be  

cons is ten t  bu t  w i l l  no t  be  fa i r  o r  t ransparent  because i t  i s  a  

d i f fe ren t  bas is .   When you buy ing  100 cars  ve rsus buy ing  1  

car  you go ing  to  ge t  a  d i f fe ren t  p r ice  and tha t  is  what  we 

were  t ry ing  to  b r ing  to  the  a t ten t ion  to  say,  p lease cons ide r  

th is  because i f  you do dec ide  to  make the  dec is ion  to  cu t  

the  ba tch  s i ze  i t  is  go ing  to  a f fec t  the  pr ice  and there fore  i t  

i s  go ing  to  a f fec t  the  eva lua t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then you ind ica ted  to  me tha t  you  10 

wanted to  h igh l igh t  one fu r the r  r i sk  in  the  main  and  tha t  i s  

a t  30 .3 .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.   You see the  th i rd  r i sk  –  and you w i l l  see  

we ra ise  a  number  o f  r i sks .   But  I  want  to  focus on  these 

th ree  spec i f i ca l l y  in  in te res t  o f  t ime.   The th i rd  r i sk  we  

ra ised tha t  we wanted esca la ted  as  we l l  and wan ted the  

s tee r ing  commi t tee  to  cons ide r  was  w i th  regard  to  the  pr i ce  

tha t  we used fo r  the  eva lua t ion  was normal ised to  exc lude  

the  cost  o f  Transnet  Eng ineer ing  TE f rom the  pr ice .  

 What  we wanted to  ra i se  was tha t  i f  the  pr ice  had to  20 

be  u t i l i sed  w i th  TE i t  cou ld  be  a  d i f fe ren t  p r ice  and  we do 

not  know what  tha t  p r ice  i s .  

 The –  in  our  v iew i t  wou ld  have  been bet te r  and  

fa i re r  to  ra the r  go  in  w i th  a  pr i ce  inc lud ing  TE because 

then you eva lua t i ng  w i th  the  pr ice  tha t  you know you go ing  
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to  f ina l l y  cont rac t  on .   The pr ice  exc lud ing  TE was a  pr i ce  

tha t  was not  go ing  to  be  f ina l l y  cont rac ted  upon.   So i t  was 

not  –  we wanted to  ra i se  th i s  r i sk  tha t  tha t  p r ice  w i l l  

change.   And i f  the  pr ice  changes i t  changes the  eva lua t ion  

resu l t .   And obv ious ly  i f  the  eva lua t ion  resu l t  changes we 

cou ld  be  award ing  the  cont rac t  to  the  wrong b idder  who d id  

no t  meet  the  c r i te r ia  to  be  you know the  b idder.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now Mr  Laher  i f  you  go back to  page 227 

to  paragraph 27  you say CFET Finance what  does tha t  

s tand fo r?  10 

MR LAHER:   C ross - funct iona l  eva lua t ion  team f inance.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And th is  i s  the  –  the  commi t tee  tha t  you 

were  par t  o f?  

MR LAHER:   I t  was a  team ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A team I  beg your  pardon.   And there  

re ference is  made to  two eva lua t i on  repor ts  da ted  the  10  

December  one fo r  d iese l ,  one fo r  e lec t r i c  and you  a t tach  

them as Wi ld  6  and Wi ld  7 .   A re  those the  repor t s  tha t  you 

speak about  a t  paragraph 30?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Perhaps you cou ld  jus t  ident i f y  them for  

the  Cha i rperson.   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  – and keep 

your  f inger  a t  228 tu rn  fo rward  to  274.   I s  tha t  the  repor t  

you speak o f  in  re la t ion  to  e lec t r i c  locomot ives?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   And then a t  316 there  is  a  s im i la r  look ing  

repor t  bu t  wou ld  you conf i rm tha t  th is  now dea ls  w i th  

d iese l  locomot ives?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And those r i sks  are  h igh l igh ted  in  tha t  

repor t?  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I f  we then go fo rward  to  page 229  o f  your  

a f f idav i t  you dea l  w i th  best  and f ina l  o f fe r  and the  next  

head ing  you dea l  w i th  approva l  to  sp l i t  the  ba tches wh ich  10 

is  someth ing  tha t  you ’ve  a l ready touched on.   In  our 

preparat ion,  you indicated to me that  you feel  that  th is topic  

is bet ter deal t  wi th in your supplementary statement.  

MR LAHER :    Yes,  i t  is.   Ja.   There are two issues I  want to 

ra ise on the part icular . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   Wel l ,  let  us go.   Let  us leave 

this open.   And now let  us turn to your supplementary 

statement.   That  is at  Bundle 4B, page 733.   And you deal  

wi th the spl i t t ing of  batches at  735.    

MR LAHER :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   You want to address that  

topic? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You can deal  wi th both statements.   

You do not  have to deal  wi th only one as long as you ident i fy  
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for the Chairperson exact ly where we are.  

MR LAHER :    A l r ight .   So what  is  captur ing paragraphs 15 

and 16 is an anomaly in the memos that  were submit ted to  

the board where the resul ts of  the Costs Funct ioning 

Evaluat ion Team was misrepresented to the board.   So 

speci f ical ly. . .   must  I  . . .  I  wi l l  go and deal  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink I  actual ly want to di rect  your  

at tent ion to paragraph 17.  

MR LAHER :    17,  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  10 

MR LAHER :    I  thought so.   We wi l l  come back to th is Chai r,  

i f  you do not  mind.   So paragraph 17 speci f ical ly – and this  

re lates to a caucus that  was held dur ing the negot iat ions 

sessions.    

 So now we are skipping forward f rom the evaluat ion to  

the negot iat ions sessions.    

 So dur ing one of  the caucuses that  was held dur ing the 

negot iat ions sessions,  speci f ical ly involving that  caucus 

were Mr Singh,  Mr J iyane,  Mr Smit .   I  th ink Ms Mdletshe and 

Transnet Internal  Audi t  were in the room during that  caucus.    20 

 At  that  speci f ic caucus,  I  ra ised wi th Mr S ingh and 

Mr Jiyane that  the. . .  we communicated pr ic ing to the bidders 

dur ing that  negot iat ion session ear l ier and we ra ised a 

number of  issues wi th the bidders and we told. . .  

 One important  th ing that  we told the bidders dur ing that  
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day is that  your  pr ice cannot change for  a  cut  in the batch 

size.    

 Now with the background being that  the approval  for the 

cut t ing of  batch sizes al ready made by the Transnet board 

before the negot ia t ions.    

 So when we get  into the negot iat ions,  Mr Singh 

announces to us that  the board has approved the spl i t t ing of  

the batches which took me by surpr ise because,  you know,  

f i rst ly,  we warned them that  i f  we are going to spl i t  the 

batches i t  is going to impact  the pr ice.  10 

 And i f  you are going to spl i t  the batch,  devaluat ions 

need to redone.  This is what we warn in our report .    

 We come then to the caucus and in  the caucus I  raised 

wi th the people in  caucus and then Mr Singh and Mr Jiyane 

that  the mandate that  were provided,  the draf t  mandate that  

we were provided,  sa id that  the pr ice cannot change for the 

reduct ion in the batch.  

 So I  warned them and I  said we cannot al low for  the 

bidders to change thei r  pr ices.   I t  is  against  the mandate.   I t  

is not  al lowed.   20 

 And there was responses f rom them and I  th ink the 

responses are captured in the t ranscr ipt .   I  understand that  

Mr Cal lard has done that  t ranscr ipt  of  that  part icular caucus 

and we can go through the t ranscr ipt  of  that  caucus in more 

detai l  to ta lk about  what happened in that  part icular caucus.  
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 Because there were other issues that  I  ra ised in that  

speci f ic caucus as wel l  which are very important .  

 And I  th ink the Commission needs to understand that  

these issues were raised.   They were raised to the highest  

level  that  I  could raise them in that  point  in t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So you say at  the end of  paragraph 18 

that  you were advised that  an off ic ia l  t ranscr ipt ion is in  the 

process of  being obtained.   Now that  t ranscr ipt ion,  i f  you 

turn please to page 914,  i t  is to be found there.   I t  is  a short  

t ranscr ipt ion,  914 to 920.  Have you had an opportuni ty of  10 

reading th is? 

MR LAHER :    I  have not  had the opportuni ty of  reading this 

one.   Is th is now Mr Cal lard’s one?  Is th is another one? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    This is the off ic ia l  t ranscr ipt ion.  

MR LAHER :    Okay.   I  have not  read the off ic ia l  t ranscr ipt ,  

no.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   Wel l ,  let  us go through i t .  

“Negot iat ion Team meet ing at  Transnet on 

7 February.   Ext ract  f rom v ideo recording of  1064 

Negot iat ions. ”  20 

 So Mr Cal lard provided a best  effor t  t ranscr ipt .   His own 

one.   This is the off ic ia l  one.  

MR LAHER :    A l r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  accords wi th what his best  effort  

was but  could you p lease take the Chairperson through.  I f  
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you need some t ime to ref lect  on this,  you can.   But  could 

you take the Chai rperson through what t ranspired here? 

MR LAHER :    Sure.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So this is a caucus.   Is that  correct? 

MR LAHER :    Yes,  correct .   I t  is a caucus . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you are ref lected as being 

present .  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Together wi th  Danie Smit .   Who is he? 

MR LAHER :    Danie Smit  was the Deputy Treasurer at  the. . .  10 

in the Treasury Off ice at  Transnet and he was par t  of  the 

Finance Support  Team for the negot iat ions.   So the Finance 

Support  Team was made up of  two individuals.   And the two 

individuals being mysel f  and Mr Danie Smit .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lso present  was Mr Jiyane.   He is  

someone who you have ment ioned a lready.   What was his  

ro le? 

MR LAHER :    Mr  J iyane was the Chief  Procurement Off icer 

at  that  po int  in t ime.  The Chief  Procurement Off icer of  

Transnet Freight  Rai l .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And also present  was Mr Singh.  

MR LAHER :    Correct .   Mr Singh was the Group Chief  

Financial  Off icer of  Transnet at  that  po int  in t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You want to go through this t ranscr ipt?  

MR LAHER :    Sure.   So Chai r,  maybe we can start  w i th page 
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915.   And maybe paragraph 20 to  the bot tom of  page 195 

where I  say. . .  the background being. . .   

 I  am giving payback in terms of  what we told the bidders 

dur ing that  day in the morning session or  the af ternoon 

session.   This caucus is happening towards the evening.    

 So I  say:    

“We spoke them through.. .    

 This them being the bidders.    

“ . . .  a l l  the f inance issues and basical ly what we 

thought we would get  through in two days,  we got  10 

through in one day wi th al l  b idders.   And that  is 

because we have basical ly to ld  them what our  

issues were and we told them to come back to us by 

next  week Wednesday on the resul ts there.”  

 So we explained to them the issue we have around 

escalat ion and we told them that  escalat ion quotes by the. . .  

what  they provided are too expensive and they need to come 

back wi th bet ter escalat ion.    

 We then explained to them the issues around break 

pr ic ing and cont ractual  requirements around break pr ic ing.   I  20 

think i t  was only CSR who real ly had a few quest ions around 

break pr ic ing.  

 But  the b ig one was batch pr ic ing where they nearly  al l  

fe l l  off  the ir  chairs and the reasons being,  what we told them 

is that  the pr ice we evaluated on and the pr ice that  we want 
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is the f ive ninety-nine pr ice or the four sixty-f ive pr ice.  

 Now that  we are reducing the batches by 50%, we want 

the same pr ice and i f  we do not  keep the same pr ice then we 

have got  a big problem, a sor t  of  deal  breaker.   So 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sorry.   Before you carry on.   Could 

you just  explain,  perhaps remind the Chai rperson who no 

doubt has al ready heard this,  but  what is the di fference 

between break pr ic ing and batch pr ic ing? 

MR LAHER :    So my understanding of  batch pr ic ing.   And 10 

these concepts,  more or less,  came to l ike dur ing the 

negot iat ions.   So batch pr ic ing was where you reduced the 

size of  the batch which you were going to contract  for.    

 Break pr ic ing was where you enter into a contract  for  

however number of  locomot ives but  say hal fway through the 

contract  you break and you say I  do not  want any more 

further locomot ives.    

 So you effect ively  breaking the terms of  the contract  and 

there would be clauses,  contractual  c lauses rela t ing to  

breaking that  contract .   That  should be r ight  up f ront .   You 20 

are only enter ing into a contract  for,  cal l  i t  50% or whatever 

the number is.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So here . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is the di fference between the two that ,  in 

regard to the one,  there is going to be no change of  the 
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number of  locomot ives that  you are buying? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Whereas,  wi th regard to the other one,  i t  

leaves room for the possibi l i ty that  you might  reduce the 

number of  locomot ives that  you want to buy? 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  r ight? 

MR LAHER :    Correct .    

CHAIRPERSON :    So wi th  regard to the batch pr ic ing,  the 

pr ice would remain the same, I  guess.  10 

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    With regard to the break pr ic ing,  then the 

pr ice could change.  

MR LAHER :    The pr ice could change.   So hal fway through 

execut ion of  the contract  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR LAHER :    . . .you would tel l  the suppl ier:   Sorry,  I  wanted 

f ive ninety-nine.   Now I  only want hundred.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR LAHER :    So then the pr ice would change.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Chairperson.   So you had 

ended off  by saying a sort  of  deal  breaker at  l ine 10.  

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    P lease cont inue.  
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MR LAHER :    Mr Singh then intervenes and said:   Wel l ,  I  

would have a problem with that .   And I  said,  for obvious 

reasons:    

“Our mandate says. . .   

 And this is an important  bi t .    

“Our mandate says we must get  i t .   We must get  r id  

of  the batch pr ic ing because we must get  the same 

pr ice. ”  

 And I  said:    

“ I  hope Brian has not  yet  s igned of  the mandate. ”  10 

 Because at  that  stage i t  was st i l l  a draf t  mandate.    

 And Mr Singh responded:   

“We have not  yet  given i t  to him.”   

 And Mr Jiyane’s response:    

“No,  I  do not  th ink.”  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I  am sorry.   Mr Laher,  based 

on your explanat ion to me of  the dist inct ion between batch 

pr ic ing and break pr ic ing.   That  sentence does not  seem to 

make sense to me.   

“We must get  r id  of  th is  batch pr ic ing because we 20 

must  get  the same pr ice. ”    

 I  thought wi th batch pr ic ing you get  certainty in terms of  

the pr ice but  wi th  break pr ic ing you do not  get  certainty wi th  

the pr ice.    

 But  here you say:    
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“We must get  r id  of  th is  batch pr ic ing because we 

must get  the same pr ice. ”    

 Can you explain that  to me? 

MR LAHER :    Sure.   What I  mean Chai r  there is,  that  the 

bidders dur ing the day pr ior to that  was saying that . . .  I  

mean, we told them you cannot cut . . .  you cannot change 

your pr ice for a reduct ion in the batch size.    

 They wi l l  come back to us.   And they were again and 

said i t  is impossible.   We have to change our pr ice for a  

batch cut  because for obvious reasons.    10 

 And what I  meant to. . .  what  I  was. . .  what I  meant when I  

said this,  our mandate says we must get  i t .   We must  get  r id  

of  the batch pr ic ing.   What I  meant was,  we cannot a l low the 

bidders to change the ir  pr ic ing.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So when you said the same pr ice,  

would that  have been the same pr ice per uni t  on the 

assumpt ion that  one bidder was awarded the contract  for al l  

1064 locomot ives? 

MR LAHER :    For al l  f ive n inety-nine or for four s ixty- f ive.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja.  20 

MR LAHER :    Yes.   I t  must  get  the same pr ice per uni t  that  

we evaluated on that  was f inal ly agreed to as par t  of  the 

evaluat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you awarded smal ler batches,  

must  the pr ice go up or down? 
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MR LAHER :    Ord inar i ly you would expect  the pr ice to go up 

but  the mandate said the pr ice cannot  go up.   And that  is  

what I  was warning them that  you cannot al low.  You must  

get  r id of  the batch pr ice and we cannot al low the bidders to  

push the pr ice up because that  is  not  in  terms of  the 

mandate.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  would have expected you to  want that  

pr ic ing i f  you want certainty on the pr ice.   Am I  missing 

something? 10 

MR LAHER :    Yes,  we would want batch pr ic ing and that  was 

the. . .  that  was the decision taken by the board that  they 

want certainty on the pr ice and they want smal ler batch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR LAHER :    So when I  say get  to  the batch pr ice,  I  do not  

mean get  r id of  the concept of  batch pr ic ing.   I  mean 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR LAHER :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because that  is what I  get .  20 

MR LAHER :    Ja,  ja.   So not  the concept of  batch pr ic ing but  

more get  r id of  th is not ion f rom the bidder that  they are able 

to change thei r  pr ice for the reduct ion in the batch.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So what you meant was.   We must prevent  

them f rom changing the pr ice in the context  of  batch pr ic ing? 
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MR LAHER :    Correct .   Hundred percent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because changing the pr ice does not  

apply in batch pr ic ing? 

MR LAHER :    Changing the pr ices against  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  should not  apply.  

MR LAHER :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Carry on wi th the 

t ranscr ipt ion please.  

MR LAHER :    Mr Jiyane then responds:  10 

“No, I  do not  th ink.   But  that  is just  a wish,  you 

know.  In fact ,  some would laugh you off  and think 

you are smoking something.”  

 I  responded to say:  

“Ja,  but  you see,  we have a big issue then.”  

 And this is again my warning to them.  

“Because i f  we do not  get  that . . . ”  

 And then I  was interrupted.  

“ I f  we do not  get  that  pr ice . . . [ intervenes]   

 And then I  was interrupted by Transnet Internal  Audi t .   20 

So the unknown female speaker is f rom Transnet Internal  

Audi t .   She said:  

“Sorry,  I  have to do my duty. ”  

 Because there were other people in the room at  that  

point  in t ime who were not  part  of  the Evaluat ion Team and 
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she did not  want them in the room.   

 So she wanted to  ask them to leave the room.  I  th ink i t  

was two or three people in  the room.  So we sort  of  wai ted 

for those people to leave the room and then we cont inued.  

 I  am going to cont inue then. . .  okay the unknown speaker 

said:  

“Who are they?  Okay go and si t  in the other room.   

There is another room opposi te.   Sorry,  guys. ”  

 And then one the person that  were in the room said:  

“ I  just  heard.   Ment ion my in i t ia ls.   I t  is CSR.  And I  10 

am thinking what I  have done?” 

 And the lady f rom the TIA,  Transnet  Internal  Audi t  says:  

“You know the rules.”  

 And then we cont inued.   So then I  cont inued to say:  

“The issue we have around that  and i t  now comes 

back to evaluat ions because they provided us.   I f  we 

have to go back on i t ,  i t  is cr i t ical  that  they give us 

the r ight  advice because i f  i t  is not ,  some of  the 

other bidders g ive us bet ter pr ic ing on a smal ler 

batch. ”  20 

 So now I  am referr ing back to  the evaluat ion repor t  

where we said. . .  and I  am making them aware that  you cut  

the batch s ize,  bidders that  you have excluded f rom these 

negot iat ions,  presumable were,  give six or seven on electr ic  

and four on diesel .   They were only negot iat ing wi th two and 
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two.    

 Now you have excluded two on the diesel  and you have 

excluded another,  I  am going to say f ive for want. . .  I  th ink i t  

was f ive.   

“You have not  al lowed them to cope for a smal ler  

batch.   So how do you know you have evaluated 

properly?”  

 And this is what I  am ra is ing to them that  the 

evaluat ion. . .   

“You need to go back and re-evaluated.”  10 

 This is the point  I  am trying to make here.   Mr J iyane 

then responds to me.  He talks me down and says:  

“No,  but  Yusuf  we never had batches and I  th ink we 

must not  confuse the thing.”  

 Singh then also responded and said:  

“Ja,  we never evaluated on batches.”  

 Mr Jiyane then responds again and says:  

“We never had batches and/or what  we ask for.   We 

asked for a break.   For break pr ic ing.”  

 I  said:  20 

“Hundred percent  so.   Yes,  in the tender response 

we asked for  break pr ic ing,  we did not  ask for  batch 

pr ic ing. ”  

 But  I  th ink they are confusing the issue by talk ing about  

these things.   Mr Jiyane responds:  
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“But  they cannot use that  we evaluate the batches. ”  

 And I  say:  

“Hundred percent  because you cannot because that  

is break pr ic ing. ”  

 And the responds again to say:  

“So no bidders have given us informat ion to say i f  

we have given the hal f  of  the quant i ty,  th is  is my 

pr ice.   So there I  do not  have a problem.   

So as far as that  is concerned there is no other 

pr ice that  we have gone on accept  the pr ices that  10 

we had for the total  quant i ty. ”  

 So accepted his explanat ion at  that  po int  in t ime when 

he was senior.   Way above me.  He was the expert .   He was 

the Chief  Procurement Off icer and I  had to accept  th is  

explanat ion based on the issue I  ra ised at  that  point  in t ime.  

So I  say:  

“Fai r  enough.  Let  us hope they come back wi th the 

r ight  pr ice.”  

 Then Mr Jiyane responded to say:  

“Look,  the quant i ty makes a huge di fference.”  20 

 Then Mr Singh responds:  

“Let  us put  i t  th is way.   I t  is not  up to. . .  I  cannot see 

how they wi l l .   I  th ink i t  is good that  you have asked 

but  there is no way they are going to come back wi th  

the same pr ice. ”  
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 Mr Smit  then asked the quest ion:  

“There is no ways that  they wi l l  come in at  the same 

pr ice?”  

 Mr Singh responds.   I t  says:  

“Yes,  i t  cannot be.   I  mean, the whole evaluat ion is 

al ready immediately di fferent .   You a l located over  

600 and now you are al locat ing over 300.   I t  cannot  

be.”  

 Again,  th is is another crucial  point  I  ra ise here in my 

next  quest ion.   So I  posed the quest ion to them.   Just  a 10 

quest ion.  

“Should we not  have gone pre-award back to al l  the 

bidders and said give us a pr ice for  80 %.. . ”  

 I t  is not  80%.  I t  should be 50%.  I  said 50%.  And said:  

“Give us a pr ice for 50% of  the batch.”  

 Again,  I  am tel l ing them.  You got  to go back and re-

evaluate for 50% of  the batch because then the process is 

t ransparent  and i t  is fa i r  and i t  is a l lowing a l l  of  the bidders 

to quote for a lower pr ice.  

 As you know from previous test imony at  the 20 

Commission,  the impact  of  the batch pr ice was signi f icant  on 

the pr ice.   And what I  am br inging as an eye-witness to the 

Commission is,  that  I  d id raise this issue and I  warned them 

twice now about the impact  on the batch and the pr ice.    

 Obviously,  they gave me reasons and provided reasons 
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why they thought i t  was st i l l  a fa i r  process.   I  wi l l  cont inue.  

Mr Sing then responds to me to say:  

“ I t  is too late now.”  

 I  do not  know i f  that  is an adequate response but  

anyway,  that  was his response.   And Mr Jiyane said:  

“We st i l l  do not  know what i t  is go ing to be.   I t  is 

60^,  depending on the negot iat ions.   Some get  60%.  

Some get  40%.  We do not  know.”  

 I  responded to say:  

“But  anyway,  be that  as i t  may.   That  was a f law.  A 10 

f law down discussion.”  

 And I  cont inued to then explain what we spoke about.   I  

cont inued to say we then spoke about warranty and the cost  

of  extended warranty and they wi l l  come back to  us.   We 

spoke about opt ions.   So Mr Singh to say:  

“So we may put  i t  a l l  together. ”  

 Mr Jiyane cont inues and he says that :  

“The only one thing,  okay,  that  you would not  know 

about the issues around the escalat ion things.   I t  

was not  part  of  the evaluat ion.”  20 

 Mr Singh then responds to say:  

“By that  t ime.. .  but  they put  that  on the table and we 

are get t ing that  f rom Regiments. ”  

 So he is ta lk ing about get t ing the escalat ion benchmark 

calculat ions f rom Regiments.   So Mr Jiyane responds to say:  
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“Whatever they gave us on the thing,  that  they gave 

us,  actual ly you must  ignore.”  

 And I  said:  

“Ja,  I  th ink.”  

 And Mr Jiyane responds:  

“The less you say about i t ,  the bet ter. ”  

 And I  respond to say:  

“Ja.   And thank goodness we have evaluated 

excluding escalat ions.”  

 Chai r,  the reason why I  said that  part icular statement  10 

there:   “Thank goodness we have evaluated excluding 

escalat ions. ”   Again,  i f  you go back two or f ive hours in that  

part icular day whi lst  we were doing the negot iat ions wi th  

CSR.  CSR threw a real  curve bal l  a t  us.  

 Now the curve bal l  they threw at  us was,  we told them 

during the negot iat ions that  escalat ion costs in the in i t ia l  

quote that  they provided was too expensive and that  i t  needs 

to be a lot  lower.  

 They responded to us and they basical ly to ld  us – and 

this was the curve bal l .   That  when they responded on the 20 

escalat ion costs as part  of  the tender.    

 So the in i t ia l  tender,  which is four,  f ive months pr ior to 

that  when whi lst  we were doing the evaluat ions.   They only 

quoted for one year worth of  escalat ions.    

 That  is a cr i t ical  statement made by CSR during the 
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negot iat ions which took as aback because effect ively  what i t  

means was.   What they suppl ied dur ing the evaluat ions was 

not  a t rue ref lect ion of  escalat ions over the ful l  term of  the 

escalat ion per iod.  

 I  then responded l ike this to say:   I f  we d id evaluate,  

including escalat ions,  that  evaluat ion would have been 

completely wrong and we would have paid wi th CSR because 

effect ive ly,  they only gave one year  worth of  escalat ions 

whereas al l  the other bidders who we asked and suppl ied 

escalat ions costs. . .  10 

 Remember,  not  al l  of  them suppl ied escalat ion costs.   Al l  

of  the other bidders or some of  the other bidders would have 

given us escalat ion for the ful l  per iod,  which would have 

been f ive or s ix years ’ worth of  del ivery.  

 And that  is  why I  made the comment to say:   Hold on.   

Thank goodness we did not  evaluate because we would have 

been completely wrong with the evaluat ion.  

 I  cont inue wi th the. . .  Mr Jiyane then responds:  

“Ja.   And then our  escalat ions and on the heading 

stuff?”  20 

 I  responded:  

“On heading,  they must  come back on Monday 

because we to ld  them that  they must  come back on 

Monday wi th thei r  quotes for hedging”  

 And then Mr Jiyane responds to say:  
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“And Danie.   Wel l ,  explain.   But  the Chinese,  they 

do not  understand.”  

 Mr Singh says:  

“They understand what I  want.   I  want  them to give 

me a let ter f rom someone to say that  they are going 

to put . . .  

 Sorry for the word.  

“ . . . the s-h- i - t  in p lace.   That  is what they are going 

to te l l  us on Monday. ”  

 I  responded to say:  10 

“ I  do not  th ink the Chinese. . . ”  

 And then Mr Smit  intervenes.   And he said:  

“That  we did not . . .  we did not  ask them, you know.   

We said they must  come forward wi th an innovat ive 

hedging st rategy.   But  Anoj ,  I  have no doubt they 

wi l l  come with a let ter f rom the bank because they 

themselves cannot do that . ”  

 Now Mr S ingh responds to say:  

“ I  do not  want  that .   I  want  them to tel l  me that  here 

is my counterparty.   I  agree that  I  wi l l  g ive you 50% 20 

exposure and I  wi l l  cover you f rom an APG 

perspect ive and performance point .   That  is what  

they must  give me.”  

 Mr Jiyane responds:  

“No,  that  they can give.”  
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 And Mr Danie Smit  then concludes this part  of  the 

recording.    

“We have more than . . . [ indist inct ] ”  

 So I  th ink the important  bi ts  of  th is part icular  

t ranscr ipt ion were the warnings that  sounded again around, 

you cannot touch the batch pr ice because i t  is against  the 

mandate.  

 Sorry.   You need to go out  and re-evaluated because i t  

is two things.   Let  me rephrase that .   Number one.   I t  is 

against  the mandate.   You cannot  accept  a pr ice f rom the 10 

bidders that  are against  the mandate.  

 Number two.   You need to go out  and re-evaluate for  

bidders. . .  because now you have cut  the batch and you do 

not  know whether the evaluat ions is fa i r  and t ransparent  

anymore.    

 And those are the two issues I  have raised and 

obviously the responded as you can hear.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r ight .   I f  we can go back p lease to 

your  main statement,  Bundle 4A, back to page 230.   I f  you 

have regard to paragraph 35.   Was there a t ime when the 20 

board then approved of  th is spl i t t ing of  batches? 

MR LAHER :    Yes,  Chai r.   The board approved the spl i t t ing 

of  batches on 17 January 2014.   Supply Chain Services 

made that  submission to the Transnet Board.   I  was unaware 

at  the t ime of  the detai ls of  the submission.    
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 We were told  later  that  the board had approved the 

evaluat ion process and also approved the spl i t t ing of  the 

batches.    

 I ,  at  that  point  in t ime, did not  have sight  of  these 

approvals but  I  got  them somet ime later.   And at tached to my 

statement are the approvals that  came through f rom the 

board as Annexures YL10 and 11 and the minutes thereto as 

YL12 and 13.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A lr ight .   And then at  36.  

MR LAHER :    The spl i t t ing of  the batches Chai r,  would have 10 

had an impact  on the pr ice of  the locomot ives and this was 

communicated to the CF.. .  in the CF,  the f inance report  by 

dated 10 December as deta i led in paragraph 29 about  so.  

 What I  am saying there is.   We warned them but  the 

board st i l l  made the decision to cut  the batches.    

 And there is one misrepresentat ion in that  submission to  

the board what the CEF ET f ind ing said but  that  is covered in 

my supplementary statement.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then at  page 231,  you deal  wi th 

negot iat ions.   You have indicated to  me that  there are a few 20 

paragraphs in that  sect ion that  you wish to highl ight .   The 

f i rst  of  them is at  paragraph 49 at  page 233.   Please deal  

wi th that .  

MR LAHER :    Thank you.   Chai r,  paragraphs 49 and 50,  

essent ia l ly,  ta lks about what I  have just  explained now in 
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terms of  the warn ings I  gave for the mandate.   I t  is 

essent ia l ly put t ing into my words what I  showed in the 

t ranscr ipt ion.   So I  do not  know i f  you want to go any further  

into that? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You say that :  

“During the Negot iat ion Team caucus,  I  ra ised 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR LAHER :    I  am sorry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    At  49.  

MR LAHER :    Sorry,  Mr Myburgh.   You are r ight .   Sorry,  I  10 

should raise i t .   Sorry,  Mr Myburgh.   Chai r,  49 we have not  

deal t  wi th.   So dur ing the Negot iat ions Team caucuses,  I  

ra ised the issue that  the escalat ion costs seem too high.    

 I  ra ised these issues speci f ical ly wi th the bidders and I  

ra ised i t  dur ing the team caucuses,  dur ing the escalat ion. . .  

dur ing the negot ia t ions sessions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what do you mean by escalat ion 

costs? 

MR LAHER :    So escalat ions costs would be.   You have a 

pr ice for a certain  i tem today.   I f  that  i tem needs to be bui l t  20 

over a per iod of  t ime, the escalat ion costs would be the 

costs of  inf lat ion,  et  cetera,  over the per iod of  t ime that  that  

i tem needs to be bui ld.    

 To lay the costs of  labour is  X but  next  year i t  wi l l  be 

higher and the fo l lowing year  i t  wi l l  be higher.   So that  is  
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escalat ion costs.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And who would have been present  

dur ing the Negot iat ions Team caucuses? 

MR LAHER :    During the caucuses Chai r,  Mr Jiyane would 

have present .   Mr Singh would have been present .   Mr Smith 

would have been present .   Transnet Internal  Audi t  would 

have been present .    

 In some instances,  the Internal  Legal  Team, Transnet 

Internal  Legal  Team would also be present .   And in  some.. .  

wel l ,  in most  instances. . .  wel l ,  in al l  instances,  Supply Chain 10 

Services would have been as part  of  the caucuses as wel l .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You then ment ioned to me that  you 

also wish to highl ight  paragraph 50.  

MR LAHER :    Yes,  Chai r.   So Chair,  th is is speci f ical ly wi th 

regard to the escalat ion costs again.   And again,  I  do not  

th ink this has been brought through to the Commission 

before.   As an eye-witness,  I  can br ing th is through to the 

Commission.  

 So I  ra ised my concerns about escalat ions di rect ly wi th 

Mr Singh as wel l .   I  was uncomfor table wi th the value that  20 

escalat ions,  that  the bidders were quot ing.    

 And I  th ink Mr Smit  was also very uncomfortable wi th  the 

value of  the escalat ions that  the bidders were quot ing.   So I  

entered into a debate wi th him in terms of  why I  thought i t  

was too high.  
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 Mr Singh then responded to me to say that  bidders bui l t  

in a r isk-premium into their  pr ic ing to cater for  

unpredictable. . .  the unpredictable nature of  future costs.   

And that  explanat ion was not  unreasonable to me because 

you wi l l  bu i l t  in a r isk-premium for future costs.  

 And he explained to me also that  i t  is a negot iat ions 

process.   The negot iat ions process,  the f inal  pr ice is what is  

important  in the context  of  negot iat ions.  

 And the pr ic ing,  the overal l  pr ic ing was acceptable in  

l ight  of  the vigorous negot iat ion process.   So what  he was 10 

get t ing at  is,  i t  is a give and take.    

 So maybe you think the escalat ion costs are too high but  

we wi l l  gain somewhere e lse.   So in his view, he bel ieves 

that  the pr ic ing,  the overal l  pr ic ing for these locomot ives 

were acceptable.  

 I  accepted his explanat ion that  he provided to me at  that  

point  to th is part icular issue that  I  have raised wi th him.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then you indicated to me, over the 

page at  234,  that  you wish also to h ighl ight  paragraph 52 but  

that  seems to me something that  we have al ready deal t  wi th.   20 

The batch pr ic ing.   

MR LAHER :    Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The next  paragraph that  you want to 

deal  wi th,  as I  understand,  is paragraph 73.   And that  relates 

to the concerns that  you raised about the relocat ion of  
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assembly faci l i t ies to Durban. 

MR LAHER :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps I  could ask you to just  deal  

wi th the whole of  th is sect ion,  please.   Start ing at  paragraph 

71.    

MR LAHER :    Sure.   Thank you.   Chai r,  in June 2015, th is 

was af ter the contract  was al ready signed.   Approximately  

just  over a year af ter the cont ract  was signed I  was 

ins t ruc ted  by  Mr  S ingh to  rev iew proposa ls  re la ted  to  the  

pr ic ing  fo r  the  move o f  the  assembly  fac i l i t i es  fo r  these 10 

locomot ives  f rom Koedoespoor t  in  Gauteng to  Durban fo r  

two OEMs very  spec i f i ca l l y,  tha t  was fo r  Bombadier  

Transpor ta t ion  and fo r  CNR.   I  rece ived those proposa ls  

f rom Ms Mdle tshe and those proposa ls  a re  a t tached as  

annexures YL18 and YL19.  

 Cha i r,  I  then commented on these proposa ls  and 

maybe we shou ld  go  to  my emai ls  on  my comments  there  

and my concerns f rom a  f inanc ia l  po in t  o f  v iew.   I  

a r t i cu la ted  in  those emai l s  and those emai ls  a re  da ted 21  

June and 22 June respect ive ly  and these emai l s  a t tached 20 

as  YL20 and the  emai l s  were  addressed to  Mr  S ingh,  Mr  

J iyane,  Mr  P i ta ,  Mr  Se l inga f rom our  Transnet  lega l  team 

and Ms Mdle tshe.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  us  go  to  those emai l s .   You w i l l  

f ind  YL20 a t  page 471.   That  i s  f rom an emai l ,  a t  the  foo t  
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o f  page,  f rom yourse l f  sent  on  the  21  June 2015.   To  whom 

d id  you send i t?  

MR LAHER:    Cha i r,  I  sen t  th is  emai l  spec i f i ca l l y  

addressed to  Ms  Mdle tshe f rom the  supp ly  cha in  serv i ces  

team and I  cc ’d  Mr  S ingh,  Mr  P i ta ,  Mr  J iyane and Mr  

Se l inga.   My rev iew comments  or  spec i f i c  ins t ruc t ion  f rom 

Mr  S ingh to  rev iew the  proposa ls  and prov ide  my  

responses.   My responses are  cap tured in  the  emai l ,  Cha i r.   

I  w i l l  go  th rough  my responses in  a  b i t  more  de ta i l .   The  

f i rs t  response was –  so  there  is  qu i te  de ta i led  responses,  10 

go t  qu i te  de ta i led  proposa ls  tha t  were  rece ived f rom the  

b idder.   The spec i f i c  response I  am go ing  to  ta lk  about  now 

is  w i th  regard  to  the  CNR proposa l .  

 The f i rs t  i ssue I  ra ised was I  sa id  –  I  to ld  h im tha t  

the  increase in  the  team s ize  does not  make sense 

cons ider ing  tha t  the  learn ing  curve  w i l l  m i t iga te  th is  

requ i rement  w i th in  a  shor t  t ime.    

So CNR wanted to  increase  the  number  o f  

personne l  invo lved in  the  t ransact ion  and I  sa id  i t  does not  

make sense because w i th  the  learn ing  curve  you  shou ld  20 

ac tua l l y  be  ab le  to  learn  a  lo t  qu icker  so  you do not  need  

ex t ra  personne l  fo r  the  move to  Durban.   Why wou ld  you 

need ex t ra  personne l  fo r  a  move to  Durban,  le t  us  t ry  and  

get  tha t .  

The second po in t  I  ra ised w i th  was negot ia t ing  w i th  
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supp l ie rs  o r  e l im ina t ing  in f la t iona ry  costs  re la ted  to  the 

add i t iona l  four  months .   In  any case mate r ia l  cos ts  

genera l l y  do  no t  increase on a  month l y  bas is  thus the  

impact  shou ld  no t  be  as  la rge  as  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  1 .8%,  i t  i s  

no t  ve ry  c lea r  here .  

A lso ,  1 .8% for  four  months  does not  equa l  5 .5% but  

ra the r  7 .2% which  is  excess ive .   So I  am po in t ing  ou t  tha t  

th is  cos t  i s  excess ive  in  the  quote .   The next  bu l le t  3 :  

“F rom the  exp lanat ion  prov ided the  incrementa l  cos t  

o f  p rocurement  does not  re la te  to  the  move to  the  10 

Durban.   Th is  shou ld  no t  be  charged.   In  any case,  

9% in teres t  i s  excess ive . ”  

So the  po in t  I  am mak ing  there ,  Cha i r,  i s  they wanted to  

charge add i t iona l  cos ts  fo r  p rocurement  because they are  

mov ing  the  fac i l i t i es  f rom Johannesburg  to  Durban and I  

am say ing  bu t  tha t  does not  make sense because you  

shou ld  have a l ready incu r red  the  cost  in  your  o r ig ina l  

quote  when you  were  do ing  i t  in  Johannesburg ,  so  tha t  

shou ld  no t  be  charged.  

 And then they quoted fo r  in te res t  wh ich  is  9% and I  20 

sa id  no ,  the  in te res t  ra te  o f  9% is  excess ive  and nobody 

charges those type o f  ra tes .    

 I tem 4 ,  they quoted fo r  add i t iona l  techn ica l  suppor t  

requ i red  in  Durban and I  sa id  the  add i t iona l  techn ica l  

suppor t  requ i rement  in  Durban does not  make sense.   The 
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cos t  o f  th is  techn ica l  suppor t  shou ld  have a l ready been 

inc luded in  the  or ig ina l  p r i ce  o f  the  locomot ives .   So aga in  

I  am say ing  i t  does not  make sense,  you cannot  ask  us  – 

you cannot  charge fo r  th is .  

 Po in t  5  I  sa id :  

“On-s i te  serv ice  techn ic ians shou ld  have been  

inc luded in  the  or ig ina l  p r i ce . ”  

So CNR quoted add i t iona l  cos ts  fo r  on-s i te  serv ice  

techn ic ians and I  am say ing  i t  shou ld  have a l ready been  

inc luded in  the  or ig ina l  p r ice  so  you cannot  cha rge fo r  i t  10 

aga in ,  in  o ther  words.   A lso ,  they charged R31.5  m i l l ion  fo r  

t rave l  and re loca t ion  and I  sa id  R31.5  m i l l ion  fo r  t rave l  and  

re loca t ion  seems excess ive .  

 Then I  asked the  quest ion ,  we  are  a  t ranspor t  

company,  why do they need to  use o ther  t ranspor te rs  to  

t ranspor t  goods down to  Durban?   We are  a  ra i l  company,  

sure ly  we can use our  own ra i l  and tha t  was the  po in t  I  am 

mak ing  in  po in t  6 :  

“Can the  task  no t  be  done by  TFR,  Transnet  F re igh t  

Ra i l  v ia  ra i l  con ta ine rs?   I f  so ,  then insurance costs  20 

wou ld  a l so  be  m in imal  as  we wou ld  be  in te rna l l y  

insu red. ”  

As you can see there  is  a  number  o f  de ta i led  responses I  

am ra i s ing  here .    

 Po in t  7  I  say  tha t  –  they wanted to  charge fo r  
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she lv ing  and I  responded to  say R11 200 per  square  met re  

per  she lv ing  seems excess ive ,  as  S iya(?)  shou ld  research  

th is ,  there  needs to  research  what  the  rea l  cos t  pe r  

she lv ing  is  in  Durban.  

 Po in t  8 ,  the  po in t  I  am ra is ing  he re  is  they wanted  

to  es tab l i sh  a  warehouse in  Durban and I  am ask ing  has  

cons idera t ion  been g iven to  a  Transnet  p roper ty  o r  a  TFR 

proper ty  warehouse as  we can use ou r  own warehous ing .   

Why must  we go and use someone  e lse ’s  warehous ing ,  we  

can save costs  on  tha t  bas i s .  10 

 I  a lso  asked in  po in t  9 ,  they quoted fo r  add i t iona l  

fo rk l i f t s  and I  asked why the  add i t iona l  fo rk l i f t s ,  you  shou ld  

have –  in  o ther  words,  you shou ld  quoted fo r  fo rk l i f t s  in  

your  o r ig ina l  quo te  now why because you are  mov ing  to  

Durban i t  does not  make sense tha t  you need more  fo rk l i f t s  

because you are  in  Durban.  

 Po in t  10 ,  th is  i s  no t  very  c lear  on  my copy,  Cha i r.   I t  

looks  l i ke  i t  someth ing  how much is  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    How much  o f  the  incent ive  and  

re loca t ion  cost  per  s ta f f  member.  20 

MR LAHER:    Yes ,  yes ,  I  am ask ing  the  quest ion  how much  

is  tha t  because tha t  was not  counted and on my  copy I  

cannot  see 11 as  we l l .    

CHAIRPERSON:    11  is  no t  leg ib le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  w i l l  ensure  tha t  page i s  rep laced,  
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Cha i rperson.   I  am go ing  to  move on to  12  then,  Cha i r  

person.  

MR LAHER:    Po in t  12  tha t  I  ra ised is  the  labour  in f la t ion  

ra te  app l ied  a t  5 .5% fo r  the  fu l l  year  whereas the  move  

was on ly  fo r  four  months .   I  sa id  how can you charge 5 .5% 

for  the  fu l l  year  wh ich  is  where  shou ld  on ly  be  fou r  months 

and I  a lso  po in ted  out  tha t  the re  was  an er ror  in  the  

fo rmula  in  the i r  sheet  there ,  ce l l  E23 in  the  s ta f f  sheet .    

I  po in ted  out  in  i tem 13 they wou ld  have a l ready  

quoted fo r  ag ing  costs ,  so  the  add i t iona l  cos ts  to  ro l l  ove r  10 

the  hedge must  be  checked by  our  t reasury  depar tment  to  

conf i rm whethe r  i t  i s  reasonab le  o r  no t .  

Now po in t  14 ,  I  a lso  sa id  tha t  the  add i t iona l  bond 

costs  must  be  checked by  our  t reasury  depar tment  to  

conf i rm i f  i t  i s  reasonab le .    

Po in t  15 ,  Cha i r,  I  ra ised there  tha t  they have  

inc luded a  cost  fo r  cont ingency  r i sk  o f  4% and a  r i sk  

prov is ion  o f  9% as pa r t  o f  the i r  p r i ce  and I  ra ise  there  tha t  

th is  cont ingency r i sk  o f  4% and the  r i sk  p rov is ion  o f  9% is  

unexp la ined and seems un jus t i f ied .   I t  i s  unexp la ined and  20 

seems to  be  add i t iona l  p ro f i t ,  sor ry.   Th is  seems excess ive .   

So aga in  they a re  charg ing  us  pro f i t  fo r  someth ing  they  

shou ld  no t  be  charg ing  fo r.  

Po in t  16 ,  I  asked tha t  a  de ta i led  l i s t  o f  supp l ie rs  

be ing  used in  Durban must  be  ob ta ined versus those in  
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Jo ’burg  so  tha t  we can exp la in  why they wou ld  need –  why 

there  wou ld  be  add i t iona l  cos t?  I f  there  are  a l ready 

supp l ie rs  in  Durban,  there  shou ld  no t  be  add i t iona l  cos ts  

fo r  those supp l ie rs  in  Durban fo r  t ranspor ta t ion .  

Po in t  17  I  ra ised was the  cost  o f  the  long te rm 

main tenance consu l t ing  does not  re la te  to  the  move to  

Durban.   Th i s  shou ld  no t  be  charged as  i t  shou ld  have 

a l ready been inc luded in  the  or ig ina l  p r ice .  

And then las t l y  I  ra ised tha t  in  the i r  ca l cu la t ion  they  

doub le  counted the  labour  in f la t ion  in  those pa r t i cu la r  10 

ce l l s .   So as  you can see,  Cha i r,  I  ra ised a  number  o f  very  

per t inent  and impor tan t  i ssues w i th  regard  to  the  pr ic ing  

tha t  came th rough w i th  regard  to  move to  Durban by  CNR 

spec i f i ca l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  see tha t  i t  i s  quar te r  

past  e leven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  le t  us  take  the  tea  ad journment  

and we w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  proceed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  Laher,  

we were  a t  page 471,  472,  those were  your  po in ts  you 

ra ised in  respect  o f  CNR’s  re loca t ion  proposa l .   I f  you  go  

to  473 you f ind  a  s im i la r  emai l  da ted  22 June f rom you to 
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the  same peop le  and my unders tand ing  is  tha t  then  in  tu rn  

addresses Bombadier ’s  p roposa l .   These are  your  

comments .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  these are  my comments  

regard ing  the  Bombadier  p roposa l .   Cha i r,  the  Bombadier  

p roposa l  d id  no t  p rov ide  adequate  in fo rmat ion  f rom which  

to  do  a  f inanc ia l  eva lua t ion .   So I  am not  go ing  to  go  

th rough the  en t i re  emai l  su f f i ce  to  say tha t  the  g is t  o f  my 

emai l  was tha t  Bombadier  d id  no t  p rov ide  su f f i c ien t  

f inanc ia l  numbers  so  tha t  we can do any eva lua t ion  and  10 

tha t  tha t  was i t ,  so  I  do  no t  know i f  you need to  go  th rough 

i t ,  the  res t  o f  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  see  your  conc lus ion  jus t  

be fore  you say:   Best  regards,  Yousuf ,  i s :  

“The BT cost  in fo rmat ion  is  l im i ted  and does not  

a l low fo r  a  de ta i led  ana lys i s  o f  the i r  cos t ing . ”  

Was tha t  the  conc lus ion tha t  you came to  on  the  bas i s  o f  

the  preced ing  po in ts?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t ,  co r rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  you  go back then p lease to  your  –  20 

the  tex t  o f  your  main  a f f idav i t  a t  –  o r  s ta tement  o r  238.   We 

have now dea l t  w i th  parag raph  71,  72 .   73 ,  tha t  i s  

essent ia l l y  a  l i s t  o f  the  concerns  tha t  you have a l ready 

ment ioned in  re la t ion  to  CNR.  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    74 ,  can you  p ick  up  there  p lease?  

MR LAHER:    Cha i r,  I  rece ived a  rev i sed CNR p roposa l  on  

the  23  June f rom supp ly  cha in  serv i ces .   I  rev iewed the  

rev i sed proposa l  and I  responded then on the  25  June tha t  

the  proposa l  tha t  I  rece ived had  not  changed f rom the 

prev ious proposa l  except  fo r  a  new o f fe r  o f  payment  te rms.   

So bas ica l l y  no th ing  changed except  fo r  the  payment  te rms 

and tha t  was in  my response in  YL21,  I  th ink .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  75  you dea l  w i th  Bombadie r,  

BT.  10 

MR LAHER:    Yes,  i t  goes back to  BT d id  no t  p rov ide  the  

de ta i led  cost ing  o f  each i tem,  i t  makes up the  add i t iona l  

cos t  and the  BT cost  in fo rmat ion  is  l im i ted  and does not  

a l low fo r  a  de ta i led  ana lys i s  o f  the  cost ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  you subsequent ly  rece ive  

any fu r ther  p roposa l  f rom BT? 

MR LAHER:    Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  rece ive  any fu r ther  p roposa ls  

f rom BT or  CNR a f te r  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  Laher,  tha t  then comple tes  

your  main  s ta tement ,  the  th ings  you wanted to  h igh l igh t .   20 

Cou ld  we then p lease go to  your  supp lementary  s ta tement .   

As  I  exp la ined to  you,  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  main  

s ta tement  and the  supp lementary  s ta tement  and then we 

w i l l  dea l  w i th  your  ru le  3 .4  s ta tement .  
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 Your  supp lementa ry  s ta tement  you f ind  in  bund le  4B  

and i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  tu rn  up  page 733.   Some o f  th is  

we have a l ready dea l t  w i th  bu t  cou ld  I  take  you to  

parag raph 12.   Would  you dea l  w i th  tha t  p lease? 

MR LAHER:    Cha i r,  I  have inc luded paragraph 12 in to  my  

submiss ion  to  g ive  a  v iew o f  what  the  repor t ing  l ines  were  

dur ing  the  eva lua t ion  s tage and  the  negot ia t ion  s tage,  

those are  dep ic ted  in  annexure  YL39.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l  le t  us  go  to  YL39 and 

tha t  you f ind  a t  page 741.  10 

MR LAHER:    Cha i r,  i f  I  can  ta lk  th rough YL39.   Sor ry,  i f  I  

cou ld  s ta r t  w i th  the  bo t tom r igh t  b lock .   Those are  the  

repor t ing  l ines  dur ing  the  eva lua t ions so  there  were  th ree  

teams essent ia l l y  fo r  the  va lua t ions.   There  was the  CFET 

f inance team which  was myse l f  and f i ve  o ther  ind iv idua ls .   

Then the re  was the  CFET techn ica l  team which  eva lua ted 

the  techn ica l  par t  o f  the  tender  made up w i th  a  d i f fe ren t  lo t  

o f  ind iv idua ls .  

 And then there  was the  cross- func t iona l  eva lua t ion  

team tha t  eva lua ted loca l  content  supp ly  deve lopment  and  20 

BBBEE,  so  th ree  separa te  teams.   We eva lua ted each o f  

our  sec t ions separa te l y  and then  we prov ided our  resu l ts  

th rough to  supp ly  cha in  serv ices .   Supp ly  cha in  serv i ces ,  

we repor ted  in  to  supp ly  cha in  serv ices  essent ia l l y  fo r  the  

eva lua t ions.   Supp ly  cha in  serv ices  then wou ld  conso l ida te  
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a l l  o f  the  resu l ts  and then repor t  in  to  the  s tee r ing  

commi t tee  and obv ious ly  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  wou ld  

repor t  in  to  Transnet  Exco in  to  the  board .   The dec i s ions 

were  obv ious ly  made a t  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  and board  

leve l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you  were  par t  o f  the  CFET 

f inance team.  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  the  bo t tom on the  le f t  hand s ide .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  and then tha t  re la tes  to  

eva lua t ions and the  pos i t ion  dur ing  negot ia t ions?  

MR LAHER:    So  dur ing  the  negot ia t ions ,  Cha i r,  the  top  le f t  

hand s ide  b lock ,  there  were  a  number o f  teams tha t  were  

par t  o f  the  negot ia t ions  so  i t  was the  f inance suppor t  team 

which  was two o f  us ,  myse l f  and Dan ie ,  then there  was the  

lega l  team made up w i th  in te rna l  lega l  and ex terna l  lega l ,  

so  we had an  army o f  lawyers  w i th  us ,  qu i te  few 

ind iv idua ls .    

 Then there  was the  supp ly  cha in  serv ices  suppor t  20 

team e f fec t i ve l y  made up o f  Ms Mdle tshe and Mr  J iyane  

and then there  was Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  who are  a l so  

par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  sess ions.  

 We repor ted  i n  to  the  cha i rpe rsons o f  the 

negot ia t ing  team.   The cha i rpersons o f  the  negot ia t ing  
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team were  Mr  S ingh and Mr  J iyane,  co-cha i rpe rson ,  so  on  

the  days Mr  S ingh was not  there ,  Mr  J iyane wou ld  cha i r,  

the  most  sen ior  person wou ld  normal ly  cha i r  and then the  

cha i rpersons wou ld  repor t  in  to  the  s tee r ing  commi t tee  or  

the  subcommi t tee  o f  the  s teer ing  commi t tee .   There  was a  

subcommi t tee  o f  the  s teer ing  commi t tee ,  the  subcommi t tee  

o f  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  was made out  o f  th ree  

ind iv idua ls  wh ich  is  Mr  S ingh,  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Gama.  

 The dec is ion-mak ing  happened a t  the  subcommi t tee  

o f  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  so  any  dec is ion  tha t  had to  be 10 

made around th is  par t i cu la r  tender  and negot ia t ions ,  

inc lud ing  p r ice ,  payment  te rms,  e tce te ra ,  was made  a t  tha t  

leve l .  

 Our  ro le  was pure ly  a  suppor t  ro le  w i th  no  dec is ion-

mak ing  capab i l i t ies .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  i f  you  go back to  page  

734 o f  your  supp lementary  s ta tement .   We have dea l t  w i th  

parag raph 12.   You a l so  h igh l igh ted  p rev ious l y  a t  page 

736,  you have dea l t  w i th  paragraph 17 and what  I  wou ld  

ask  you to  dea l  w i th  now – and perhaps you can dea l  w i th  20 

the  who le  o f  th is  sec t ion  under  the  head ing  F ina l  

Conso l ida t ion  and in  par t i cu la r  the  issue o f  hurd le  ra tes ,  

wh ich  is  a  new th ing ,  as  I  unders tand i t .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  you  cou ld  dea l  w i th  parag raphs 19  
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to  28  p lease?  

MR LAHER:    Sure .   Cha i r,  post  the  negot ia t ion  p rocess Mr  

S ingh requested tha t  I  pu t  th rough a  f ina l  conso l ida t ion  o f  

the  numbers  as  we l l  as  ass is t  h im in  mak ing  ed i ts  to  a  

memorandum tha t  needed to  go  th rough to  the  board  

request ing  fo r  the  increase in  ETC f rom the  board-

approved 38.6  in i t ia l l y  th rough to  the  54 .5  b i l l i on  inc lud ing  

the  op t ions.   The ev idence I  p resent  here  was –  i s  w i th  

regard  to  the  NPV ca lcu la t ions tha t  needed to  be  done fo r  

the  memorandum to  the  board  and spec i f i ca l l y  th is  10 

ev idence I  have  put  in to  my supp lementary  s ta tement  

because I  ident i f ied  i t  recent ly  wh i ls t  I  par t i c ipa t ing  in  

g iv ing  ev idence a t  the  SAICA d isc ip l ina ry  case aga ins t  Mr  

S ingh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  le t  us  jus t  b reak th is  down.   We 

are  ta lk ing  about  hurd le  ra tes  used fo r  NPV ca lcu la t ions.   

What  does tha t  s tand fo r?  

MR LAHER:    NPV s tands fo r  ne t  p resent  va lue  

ca l cu la t ions and a  ne t  p resent  va lue  ca lcu la t ion  wou ld  then  

determine whethe r  a  cap i ta l  investment  i s  v iab le  or  no t .   I f  20 

i t  i s  pos i t i ve  i t  i s  v iab le ,  In  o ther  words.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  i s  a  hurd le  ra te?  

MR LAHER:    A hurd le  ra te  wou ld  be  the  in te res t  ra te  used 

to  d iscount  the  cash f lows fo r  the  NPV ca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And do I  unders tand you to  have  
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sa id  tha t  you gave th is  ev idence about  the  hurd le  ra te  used  

fo r  the  NPV ca lcu la t ions a t  Mr  S ingh ’s  SAICA inqu i ry?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    P lease ca r ry  on?  

MR LAHER:    I  am a t  paragraph  20 now.   So as  par t  o f  

ob ta in ing  the  requ i red  inputs  fo r  the  memo Mr  S ingh  

requested tha t  I  contac t  Mr  Ca l la rd  in  o rde r  to  ob ta in  an  

updated net  p resent  va lue  number  as  Mr  Ca l la rd  had  

per fo rmed or ig ina l  ne t  p resent  va lue  ca l cu la t ions.  

 As  ins t ruc ted ,  I  contac ted  Mr  Ca l la rd  on  the  21  10 

March.   Mr  Ca l la rd  responded on the  23  March essent ia l l y  

ind ica t ing  tha t  i f  the  hurd le  ra te  fo r  the  or ig ina l  NPV 

ca lcu la t ion  tha t  was presented to  the  board  o f  18 .56% was 

used the  NPV wou ld  become negat ive  wh ich  e f fec t i ve ly  

meant  tha t  the  who le  p ro jec t  i s  no t  v iab le .  

 Shor t l y  thereaf te r  –  obv ious ly  Mr  S ingh saw th is ,  Mr  

S ingh to ld  me tha t  the  hurd le  ra te  ac tua l l y  changed f rom 

18% to  15% and tha t  the  NPV wou ld  become pos i t i ve  i f  the 

new hurd le  ra te  o f  15% is  used and ad jus ted .  

 So I  then –  Mr  Gama sent  an  emai l  to  ask  the  20 

quest ion  why is  the  NPV negat ive?  I  responded to  Mr  

Gama in  a  nu tshe l l  to  say  tha t  the  Transnet  hurd le  ra te  has 

been changed f rom about  18% to  about  15%,  i t  changed 

las t  week,  I  th ink ,  based on what  Mr  S ingh to ld  me ,  so  jus t  

re lay ing  the  message –  and a  copy o f  tha t  emai l  i s  
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a t tached.  

 The background beh ind  is  tha t  the  po l i cy  owner  fo r  

the  WACC ra te  o r  the  hurd le  ra te  i s  the  Genera l  Manager  

Group F inanc ia l  P lann ing  wanted to  ge t  tha t  r igh t ,  the  

Genera l  Manager  Group F inanc ia l  P lann ing  and the  

Genera l  Manager  Group F inanc ia l  P lann ing  a t  Transnet  

repor ts  in  to  the  Group CFO so e f fec t i ve ly  he  repor ted  in  to  

Mr  S ingh and th is  po l i cy  sponsor  fo r  the  WACC ra te  was Mr  

S ingh as  he  was the  Group CFO.  

 So a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime I  was  not  invo lved in  10 

deve lop ing  or  u t i l i s ing  the  WACC ra te  so  I  d id  no t  know 

tha t  there  was go ing  to  be  a  change in  the  WACC ra te  and  

I  took  h i s  word  fo r  i t  and exp la ined to  Mr  Gama tha t  a  

reduct ion  f rom 18 to  15% was what  i s  coming and 

obv ious ly  sent  tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  to  ask  h im to  update  h is  

ca l cu la t ions based on the  rev i sed hurd le  ra te .  

 The f ina l  WACC po l icy  was ac tua l l y  on l y  s igned o f f  

on  the  20  May 2014,  way a f te r  tha t ,  backdated to  31  March 

2014.   So the  ev idence I  am br ing ing  fo rward  to  the  

Commiss ion ,  wh ich  I  do  no t  th ink  has been brought  to  the  20 

Commiss ion  be fo re ,  i s  tha t  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  Mr  S ingh 

de l ibe ra te l y  in f luenced such tha t  the  hu rd le  ra te  shou ld  be  

reduced in  o rder  to  ensure  tha t  the  NPV remains  pos i t i ve .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Then tha t  ends o f f  on  what  

you wanted to  dea l  w i th  in  your  supp lementary  s ta tement .   
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Cou ld  we then go  to  your  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  bu t  pe rhaps i t  

i s  most  conven ien t  f i rs t  jus t  to  look  br ie f l y  a t  the  Ru le  3 .3  

no t ice  tha t  you rece ived.   That  you  f ind  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  

the  f i le .   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease to  go  to  page  503.1 .   

Th is  i s  the  3 .3  no t ice  tha t  you  rece ived?  Would  you  

conf i rm tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a t  parag raph 5  you were  

adv ised tha t  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Ca l la rd  wh ich  imp l ica tes  

you or  may imp l i ca te  you in  the  above a l legat ions is  se t  10 

ou t  and there  i s  on ly  f i ve  paragraphs,  60 ,  64 ,  67 ,  197 and 

211 and you were  then prov ided w i th  a  copy  o f  tha t  

s ta tement  and you were  to ld  tha t  the  re levant  annexures 

were  17 ,  18  and 18A,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  jus t  to  p lace  the  

ev idence tha t  you are  go ing  to  g ive  now in  con tex t .   I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  those f i ve  paragraphs in  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

s ta tement  s ta r t ing  w i th  parag raph 60 wh ich  you  f ind  at  

page 503.17.   A re  you the re?  20 

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  in  th is  paragraph:   Mr  Laher  (s ic )  

says tha t :  

“On 21 March 2014,  I  and co l leagues in  f inance  

rece ived an emai l  f rom Yousuf  Laher  w i th  
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spreadsheets  o f  the  f ina l  cash f lows as  a t  17  March  

2014.   I  was shocked and as tounded to  no te  tha t  

the  advanced payment  guarantee  fo r  the  CSR 100 

was 30%,  the  des ign  rev iew 30%,  payment  on  

acceptance per  locomot ive  37% and re ten t ion  3%.   

Th is  t rans la tes  to  a  60% upf ron t  payment  be fore  a  

s ing le  locomot ive  is  rece ived. ”  

Now paragraph 60 then appears  to  re la te  to  the  100 

locomot ives ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Not  to  the  1  064.  

MR LAHER:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  re la tes  to  sp readsheets  

dea l ing  w i th  cash f low on the  17  March and in  par t i cu la r  

the  up f ron t  payment .  

MR LAHER:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  60 .   I f  we go to  pa rag raph  

64 Mr  Laher  (s i c )  says tha t :  

“On 15 Apr i l  I  was asked by  Laher  to  ass is t  in  

updat ing  a  memorandum f rom Mole fe  to  BADC on 20 

the  inc rease in  t he  ETC o f  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  

100 21E locomot ives .   The memorandum requested  

a  recommendat ion  by  BADC to  the  board  fo r  an  

increase in  the  ETC o f  the  100 locomot ives  f rom 

3 .871 b i l l i on  to  4 .840 b i l l i on .   The increase was 



21 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 288 
 

Page 64 of 122 
 

app rox imate l y  a  b i l l i on  rand o r  25%.”  

So th is  a lso  re la tes  to  the  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives? 

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And here ,  whereas the  f i rs t  i ssue  

re la ted  to  the  up f ron t  payment  th is  i ssue re la tes  to  the  

increase in  the  ETC.  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  

parag raph 67 Mr  Ca l la rd  records :  

“Subsequent  in te r rogat ion  o f  the  memorandum f rom 10 

Laher  however  ra ised the  fo l low ing quest ion .   

Paragraph 5A o f  the  memorandum s ta tes  fo re ign  

exchange ra tes ,  the  rand has deprec ia ted  by  10 .7% 

aga ins t  the  Japanese yen,  th is  has impacted the  

expected pr ice  o f  the  locomot ive  as  pe r  the  

bus iness case and u l t imate ly  the  ETC as approved  

by  the  board  by  approx imate l y  10 .74%.   Th is  i s  

most  unusua l  as  the  Japanese  yen wou ld  be  

assoc ia ted  w i th  Mi tsu i ,  a  Japanese company and  

not  CSR,  a  Ch inese company.   Fur ther,  the  cash 20 

f low spreadsheet  re f lec ts  USD for  CSR.   From the  

ownersh ip  o f  these documents  and spreadsheets ,  

S ingh and Laher  shou ld  ta lk  to  th is  anomaly. ”  

So th is  i s  rea l l y  –  o r,  le t  me ask you,  i t  seems aga in 

re la tes  no t  to  the  1064 but  to  the  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives .  
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MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And th is  i s  rea l l y  an  issue re la t ing  to  

exchange ra tes .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And cur rency.  

MR LAHER:    Cur rency,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cur rency.   So those th ree  

paragraphs,  60 ,  64  and 67,  e lec t r i c  locomot ives .   Le t  us  go  

then fo rward  p lease to  pa ragraph 197.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page or  paragraph?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pa rdon,  page 503.54,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    There  one f inds  paragraph 197.   197  

records tha t :  

“ I  was par t  o f  a  team…” 

Th is  i s  Mr  Ca l la rd .  

“…that  p r imar i l y  compr i sed Yousuf  Laher,  Mohamed 

Moel le r,  Execut ive  Manager  F inance Fre igh t  Ra i l .   

O thers  par t i c i pa ted  but  in  a  secondary  ro le .   Our  20 

br ie f  was twofo ld .   To  show conc lus i ve l y  tha t  fo rex  

hedg ing  and esca la t ion  were  inc luded in  the  

bus iness case and reconc i le  the  38 .6  b i l l i on  o f  the  

bus iness case to  the  cont rac ted  amount  o f  49 .55  

b i l l i on . ”  
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Th is  was a  task  tha t  you under took togethe r  w i th  Mr  Laher  

(s ic )  and i t  re la ted  to  whethe r  a  cor rec t  repor t  had been  

made to  the  board .  

MR LAHER:    Yes,  cor rec t .   In i t ia l l y  repor t  to  the  board  in  

2013.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   Now you take  –  I  mean,  I  do 

no t  suppose are  imp l ica ted  here ,  you are  s imp ly  ment ioned  

as  be ing  par t  o f  th is  team and you accept  tha t  you were  

and you under took the  work .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  197 i s  no t  par t i cu la r l y  impor tan t .   

Le t  us  then go to  the  f ina l  paragraph where  you are  sa id  to  

be  imp l ica ted  and  tha t  i s  paragraph 211 a t  the  foo t  o f  page  

503.58.   Jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  comp le teness,  paragraph 197 

now dea ls  w i th  the  1  064 locomot ives .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 211:  

“Laher  i s  the  pr imary  au thor  o f  these two Exce l  

spreadsheets  o f  17  March 2014.   Laher  i s  a  

s ignatory  to  the  BAFO va lua t ion  o f  15  January  2014  20 

and was fu r thermore ,  a  member  o f  the  negot ia t ing  

team for  the  1  064 locomot ives  compr i s ing  i n te r  a l i a  

Mo le fe ,  S ingh,  Gama,  P i ta ,  J iyane ,  e tce tera . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t ,  ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  what  you are  a l leged ly  

imp l ica ted  on tha t  bas i s .   Now these spreadsheets  o f  the  

17  March 2014 ,  we a re  dea l ing  here  w i th  1  064  

locomot ives .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now a l though you a re  sa id  to  be  

imp l ica ted  in  pa ragraph –  or  sor ry,  211.   I f  you  have a  look 

a t  paragraph 208 a t  page 503.57,  Mr  Ca l la rd  says:  

“On examinat ion  I  cou ld  no t  c red i t  tha t  the  f igures  

in  the  spreadsheet  were  a  t rue  re f lec t ion  o f  the  rea l  10 

cost  o f  the  locomot ives  fo r  the  fo l low ing reasons. ”  

So a t  211 Mr  Ca l la rd  contends tha t  you a re  the  pr imary  

au thor  bu t  impor tan t ly,  and I  ra ise  th is  because i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  you then qu i te  co r rec t l y  dea l  w i th  in  your  

Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement ,  no t  on ly  does he say the  pr imary  

au thor  bu t  a t  208  he is  then cr i t i ca l  o f  the  content  o f  those 

spreadsheets .    

211 has a  subparagraph wh ich  you f ind  a t  page 

503.59,  i t  wou ld  a lso  appear  tha t  you were  imp l ica ted  here ,  

i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  you dea l  w i th :  20 

“Wi th  th is  knowledge I  was d isappo in ted  tha t  the  

exerc ise  under taken in  January  2018 was in  good  

fa i th  bu t  Laher,  w i th  fu l l  knowledge o f  the  pr ic ing  

de ta i l s  and negot ia t ions ,  chose  not  to  share  h is  

knowledge inc lud ing  the  sp readsheets  and  
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eva lua t ion  repor t s  w i th  the  members  o f  the  team to  

ar r i ve  a t  an  honest  and accura te  assessment  o f  the  

increase in  ETC f rom 38.6  b i l l i on  to  49 .55  b i l l i on  or  

54  b i l l i on ,  i f  op t ions a re  inc luded. ”  

So there  the  content ion  is  tha t  you d id  no t  sha re  your  

in fo rmat ion .   That  re la tes  a l so  to  the  1  064 locomot ives .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   So w i th  tha t  then by  way o f  

background,  le t  us  tu rn  to  your  Ru le  3 .4  s ta tement  wh ich  

you f ind  a t  page 504.   A re  you the re?  10 

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  I  cou ld  d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  to      

parag raph 6  a t  505,  you s ta te :  

“ In  the  Commiss ion ’s  no t ice  I  was adv i sed by  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  parag raph 60,  64 ,  67 ,  197 and 211  

o f  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  s ta tement  imp l ica te  me. ”  

We have dea l t  w i th  tha t .  

MR LAHER:    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then I  want  to  take  you  to  the 

head ing  a t  the  foo t ,  towards the  foo t  o f  page 506,  i s  the  20 

head ing  there  100 Locomot ive  Tender.   Do you see tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you say over  the  page a t  

parag raph 18 tha t :  

“ I  dea l  w i th  parag raph 60,  64  and 67 o f  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  
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s ta tement  in  the  parag raphs tha t  fo l low. ”  

Because those were  the  th ree  paragraphs tha t  imp l ica te  

you in  re la t ion  to  the  100 locomot ive  tender.  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you do then in  th is  pa r t  o f  

your  s ta tement  i s  you s ta r t  ou t  w i th  the  head ing  Per t inent  

Facts  Re la ted  to  the  100 Locomot ive  Dea l . ”  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  I  cou ld  then take  you  fo rward  

in  tha t .   When you get  to  pa rag raph 35 you then dea l  w i th  10 

paragraph 64,  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  64 .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you p lease to  

parag raph 36,  the  next  paragraph ,  bu t  go  over  the  page to  

511,  i t  i s  in  tha t  parag raph tha t  you dea l  w i th  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

parag raph 67.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go over  the  page to  

512 you w i l l  see  a t  42  you dea l  w i th  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  pa rag raph 

60.  20 

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th is  sec t ion  runn ing  f rom 19 to  42  

you se t  ou t  pe r t inent  fac ts  re la t ing  to  the  locomot ives  and 

in  tha t  contex t  you dea l  a lbe i t  i t  no t  sequent ia l l y  and  

numer ica l l y  bu t  you dea l  w i th  a l l  th ree  o f  those 
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parag raphs,  60 ,  64  and 67.  

 Cou ld  I  then ask  you p lease to  take  the  Cha i rpe rson 

br ie f l y  th rough th is  sec t ion  and in  the  process o f  do ing  so  

address those th ree  paragraphs.  

MR LAHER:    Sure .   Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   So I  w i l l  

s ta r t  w i th  parag raph 19 now,  Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  w i th  

regard  to  the  pe r t inent  fac ts  wh ich  prov ides some contex t  

to  the  100 locomot ive  dea l  and my  spec i f i c  invo lvement .    

 So dur ing  the  1  064 negot ia t ion  process wh ich  took  

p lace in  February /March 2014 I  was asked by  Mr  S ingh o r  10 

in fo rmed by  Mr  S ingh to  he lp  Mr  J iyane w i th  the  f inance-

re la ted  negot ia t ions  fo r  th is  100  locomot ive  dea l  and he 

a lso  to ld  us  a t  t ha t  s tage tha t  the  board  had approved a  

conf inement  fo r  100 locomot ives  to  CSR.  

 A t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime i t  took  me by comple te  surp r ise  

because we were  invo lved w i th  1  064 negot ia t ions  and I  am 

wonder ing  why do we need an ex t ra  100 locomot ives?  But  

in  any case,  he  sa id  i t  was approved by  the  board ,  we need 

an ex t ra  100 locomot ives ,  i t  has  been conf ined to  CSR.  

 So we p rov ided the  f inanc ia l  suppor t  to  Mr  J i yane.   20 

These negot ia t ions  took p lace in  the  same p lace where  the  

1  064 negot ia t ions  took p lace.   I  was not  o f f i c ia l l y  

appo in ted ,  i t  was jus t  Dan ie ,  you and Yousuf ,  go  to  tha t  

room and he lp  Mr  J iyane.  

 So i t  took  p lace  a t  Webber  Wentze l ’s  o f f i ces  in  
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I l l ovo ,  i t  was recorded,  TIA were  invo lved in  the  en t i re  

negot ia t ion ,  in  our  p rocess.   A t  the  same process  the  co-

cha i r  –  we were  repor t ing  to  the  co-Cha i rperson,  the  co -

Cha i rperson was  repor t  to  the  s teer ing  commi t tee .   That  

s tee r ing  commi t tee  is  the  commi t tee  tha t  makes the  

dec is ions i nc lud ing  p r ic ing  as  we l l  as  the  payment  te rms.   

We were  jus t  a  suppor t  team to  Mr  J iyane.  

 Mr  S ingh and J i yane ran  the  overa l l  p rocess o f  

negot ia t ions .   Dur ing  the  negot ia t ions  we wou ld  respond to  

b idders  d i rec t l y  i f  we had issues to  ra ise  bu t  most  o f  the 10 

t ime the  responses wou ld  be  th rough the  cha i rpe rsons.  

 As  I  sa id ,  the  negot ia t ions  inc luded Transne t  

in te rna l  aud i t  as  we l l  as  supp ly  cha in  serv ices i n  those 

sess ions the  co-cha i rpersons.  

 The negot ia t ion  process,  l i ke  any  o ther  negot ia t ion  

process,  i s  o f fe r,  counter -o f fe r  and i t  went  a long those  

l ines .   So wh i ls t  we were  busy w i th  the  negot ia t ions Mr  

S ingh asked me to  prepare  a  reasonab i l i t y  ca lcu la t ion  fo r  

these pa r t i cu la r  locos.    

 So in  2012 we purchased locomot ives  f rom CSR, 20 

wh ich  was a  year  o r  two ago,  and we knew what  the  pr ic ing  

fo r  the  locomot ives  were .   So wha t  he  asked me to  do  is  to  

say,  okay,  i f  you  know what  the  pr ic ing  fo r  tha t  locomot ive  

is  in  2012,  you do your  own ca l cu la t ion  and you  te l l  me 

what  you th ink  the  pr ic ing  fo r  th is  locomot ive  now in  2014 
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shou ld  be .   

 I  conducted the  ca l cu la t ion  accord ing ly,  I  went  and 

d id  some research  to  see what  the  pr ic ing  o f  tha t  

locomot ive  and I  came to  a  f igure  o f  R41 mi l l ion  fo r  tha t  

par t i cu la r  locomot ive .   My ca l cu la t ion  is  re fe renced in  

annexure  YL24.  

 My ca lcu la t ion  was p r imar i l y  based on the  –  shou ld  

we go to  YL24 jus t  to  show the  movement?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  

parag raph f i rs t  and then we can go there .  10 

MR LAHER:    So  my ca l cu la t ion  was pr imar i l y  based on 

tak ing  the  pr i ce  o f  the  20E locomot ive  tha t  was pu rchased 

in  2012,  knowing what  the  exchange ra te  fo r  tha t  

locomot ive  was in  2012 and ad jus t ing  fo r  the  change in  

exchange ra te  be tween 2012 and 2014 as  we l l  as  

increas ing  the  cost  o f  tha t  locomot ive  fo r  esca la t ions 

be tween 2012 and then,  fo r  in f la t ion ,  e tce te ra .  

 Then I  wou ld  add  in  i tems tha t  were  prov ided to  us  

by  CSR which  is  i tems we d id  no t  know about .   Th i s  was a  

h igher  spec locomot ive  so  i t  was not  exact ly  t he  same 20 

locomot ive  as  a  20E,  i t  was a  b i t  more  power fu l  locomot ive .  

 So there  wou ld  have been add i t iona l  des ign  costs ,  

add i t iona l  var ia t i ons  and I  th ink  there  were  add i t iona l  

hedg ing  costs  and se tup costs .   So I  added in  those costs  

in to  the  ca l cu la t i on  to  ge t  to  my 41 mi l l ion ,  tha t  was the  
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on ly  way I  cou ld  re ly  on  th is  in fo rmat ion ,  was the  

in fo rmat ion  I  go t  f rom CSR.   That  ca l cu la t ion  is  in  YL24.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   So YL24 you f ind  a t  page 548.   

I s  tha t  the  ca lcu la t ion?  

MR LAHER:    That  i s  the  ca l cu la t ion  yes Cha i r.   So 

essent ia l l y  what  i s  re f lec ted  on th is  ca l cu la t ion  is  the  base  

pr ice  fo r  the  20  locomot ives  in  2012 was R28.8mi l l ion .   The 

exchange ra te  used in  2012,  on  the  22 n d  o f  October  2012  

was R8.635 to  the  US Do l la r,  the  exchange ra te  wh i ls t  we 

were  do ing  nego t ia t ions  in  February  2014 was 10.9 ,  so  10 

essent ia l l y  I  ca lcu la ted  the  exchange impact  based on 

those paramete rs  as  we l l  as  ca lcu la ted  the  esca la t ion  fo r  

the  South  A f r i can  por t ion  and the  US Do l la r  po r t ion  o f  tha t  

locomot ive  and then added in  the  add i t iona l  i tems as  pe r  

the  CSR quote  fo r  va r ia t ions  add ing  hedg ing  costs  and 

dut ies  and I  a lso  took ou t  R1.5mi l l ion  fo r  the  se t -up  costs  

because my v iew was a  se t -up  costs  shou ld  have a l ready 

been inc luded us ing  they ’ re  us ing  the  same product ion  l ine  

and tha t ’s  how I  go t  to  my pr ice  o f  R41mi l l ion .   I  then 

presented tha t  R41mi l l ion  –  I ’m back in  my s ta tement ,  20 

Cha i r  I ’m  back a t  my s ta tement ,  I  then presented my  

ca l cu la t ion  to  Mr  S ingh and Mr  J i yane as  a  benchmark  to  

use fo r  the  negot ia t ions .   When we s tar ted  the  

negot ia t ions ,  Mr  J iyane p i t ched a t  the  pr ice  o f  R38.5mi l l ion  

so  he  to ld  CSR we want  a  pr ice  o f  R38.5mi l l ion  fo r  these  
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locomot ives ,  CSR d isagreed  and wanted a  pr ice  o f  

R49mi l l ion ,  i t  was a  to  and f ro ,  to  and f ro  fo r  a  long per iod  

o f  t ime and eventua l l y  we never  agreed to  anyth ing  bu t  

they d idn ’ t  want  to  budge on the i r  p romise  and obv ious l y  

we d idn ’ t  want  to  budge on ou r  p r ice .   A day o r  two la te r,  

Mr  S ingh comes in  to  us  and says,  Mr  Mole fe  has approved  

a  pr i ce  o f  R44mi l l ion  fo r  these locomot ives ,  so  there  

obv ious ly  must  have been some o ther  negot ia t ions  

happen ing  in  the  background  and based on tha t  I  

responded to  h im to  say tha t ,  bu t  the  Mi tsu i  quote  was 10 

cheaper  and he responded to  me  to  say i t  had a l ready  

been approved by  the  Board  tha t  we ’ re  go ing  to  go  w i th  

CSR so i t  doesn ’ t  mat te r  what  the  Mi tsu i  quote  was,  tha t ’s  

on  Graph 29.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  can I  jus t  ask  you,  th is  CSR 

tender  was tha t  done on conf inement?  

MR LAHER:    I t  was done on conf inement ,  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson we heard  a l l  the 

ev idence about ,  in i t ia l l y  there  was  an award  to  Mi tsu i ,  then 

there  was a  change o f  conf inement  and u l t imate l y  i t  went  20 

to  CSR.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  when you say here ,  po in ted  out  

to  Mr  S ingh,  i s  tha t  the  Mi tsu i  quote  was cheaper,  i t ’s  in  

tha t  contex t .  
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MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The to ta l  contex t .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  ca r ry  on ,  what  were  you to ld?  

MR LAHER:    Sor ry,  I  fo rgo t  to  ment ion  in  pa rag raph 28  

tha t ,  Mr  S ingh to ld  us  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  approved the  p r ice  o f  

R44mi l l ion  as  we l l  as  the  payment  te rms wh ich  is  what  Mr  

Ca l la rd  request  be  the  payment  te rms and he ins t ruc ted  the  

lawyers  to  d ra f t  the  cont ract  acco rd ing ly.   On paragraph 30 

I  ra ised w i th  the  b idders ,  in  my v iew,  the  pr ic ing  was –  you  10 

know po in t ing  ou t  the  R49mi l l ion  was excess ive  and  i t  was  

too  h igh  and I  a lso  ra i sed my concerns tha t  they were  

us ing  the  incor rec t  exchange ra tes  to  de termine the i r  

p r ices .    

Subsequent  to  tha t ,  I  a lso  ra i sed,  w i th  Mr  S ingh tha t  

–  and I  par t i cu la r ly  po in ted  out  to  h im tha t  CSR were  us ing 

the  incor rec t  exchange ra te  to  de termine the i r  p r i ce  and  

because they were  us ing  the  inco r rec t  exchange ra te  they 

were  add ing  an add i t iona l  R2.4mi l l ion  per  locomot ive  to  the 

pr ice .   H is  response to  me,  to  what  I  ra ised w i th  h im there  20 

was,  th is  aga in  i s  a  p rocess o f  negot ia t ion  and you w in  

some you lose  some and i t ’s  the  ove ra l l  p r i ce  tha t ’s  

impor tan t  in  h is  v iew the  pr i ce  o f  R44mi l l ion  was 

reasonab le ,  cons ider ing  the  r i sk  tha t  tha t  CSR were  w i l l i ng  

to  take  …[ ind is t i nc t  3 .57 ] .  In  l igh t  o f  Mr  S ingh ’s  sen io r i t y  
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and exper t i se  and exper ience I  de fer red  to  h is  exp lanat ion  

tha t  he  prov ided to  me.    

Cont inu ing  fu r ther,  post  the  negot ia t ion  process,  

Cha i r  I  jus t  want  to  ra ise  tha t  Mr  S ingh was very  sen io r  a t  

tha t  po in t ,  I  was two leve ls  be low h im a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime 

and I  had to  respect  h i s  op in ions and respect  h i s  v iews.   I f  

I  con t inued i t  wou ld  have been insubord ina t ion  to  h im,  he  

was a  member  o f  the  Board  e t ce tera ,  e tce te ra .   I  don ’ t  

even know i f  you know tha t ,  in  those days he  was awarded  

CFO of  the  year  i n  South  A f r i ca  award ,  so  he  was a  man o f  10 

s ta ture .   So,  when he spoke i t  was author i ta t i ve  and he  

spoke –  he  knew what  he  was say ing  so  you had to  respect  

what  he  was say ing ,  i t ’s  the  contex t  in  te rms o f  why I  

accepted what  he  had sa id  to  me,  i t  wasn ’ t  unreasonab le  

what  he  was say ing  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

 Post  the  negot ia t ion  process Mr  S ingh then  

exp la ined to  me,  p r inc ip le  e lements  he  wanted inc luded in  

a  memorandum tha t  needed to  go  to  the  Board  to  request  

fo r  an  increase in  the  ETC f rom the  in i t ia l  p r i c ing ,  I  th ink  i t  

was R3.4  I  cou ld  be  wrong w i th  the  pr ice  to  the  R4.4mi l l ion  20 

and deta i l ing  the  reasons fo r  the  increase in  p r ice .   He 

a lso  then exp la ined to  me the  de ta i l  o f  the  fo rmat  he  

wanted the  numbers  presented in  fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  memo 

to  the  Board  and he requested tha t  I  t yped i t  up  in to  a  dra f t  

memorandum tha t  was a l ready prepared.   I  rece i ved the  
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d ra f t  memorandum f rom Transnet  Group  Cap i ta l  

Depar tment ,  so  th is  i s  no t  my no rmal  funct ion ,  i t  was not  

what  I  normal ly  do ,  i t  was done by  another  depar tment .  so  

they prepared the  dra f t  memorandum,  they sent  i t  th rough  

to  me,  Mr  S ingh  then made ed i ts  to  tha t  and there ’s  h is  

handwr i t ing ,  there ’s  ev idence about  the  ed i ts  tha t  he  made,  

I  th ink  the  handwr i t ing  is  captured in  one o f  the  Annexures,  

I ’m  t ry ing  to  see  what  Annexure  i t  i s ,  oh  sor ry,  YL 15,  YL 

15 is  the  handwr i t ing .  

 Over  a  per iod  o f  t ime –  Mr  S ingh was ve ry  pedant ic  10 

w i th  the  word ing  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  memorandum and  he was 

very  pedant ic  w i t h  the  1064 memorandum as we l l  and over  

a  per iod  o f  t ime,  one or  two mon ths  he  made numerous 

changes and he asked me to  type up those ed i ts  in to  the  

memorandum for  h im.   I  don ’ t  unders tand why he asked me 

because I  have another  job  to  do ,  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime I  

wasn ’ t  work ing  in  h is  o f f i ce  bu t  he  used to  ca l l  me to  – 

come to  my o f f i ce  today,  you know,  spur  o f  the  moment ,  

you cou ldn ’ t  rea l l y  say  no  to  h im because he was the  b ig 

boss,  d rop  whatever  you a re  do ing  and go and do whatever  20 

he  wants  to  do .  Handover  what  you ’ve  done and  move over  

aga in ,  so  I  even quest ioned,  why am I  do ing  th i s  because  

i t ’s  c lea r ly  a  sec re tar ia l  func t ion .   I  can  put  the  numbers  

together  wh ich  is  what  I  d id  bu t  the  – typ ing  up  handwr i t ten  

no tes  was –  I  don ’ t  see why I  was do ing  i t .   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Whi ls t  we ’ re  on  tha t  Mr  Laher,  you 

ta lk  about  some handwr i t ten  no tes  o f  Mr  S ingh wh ich  you 

say are  a t tached as  Annexure  YL15 we l l  tha t  YL15 to  your  

main  s ta tement?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps we  cou ld  jus t  go  back the re  

because they may be o f  s ign i f i cance,  so  i f  you  cou ld  go  

back to  f i le  o r  Bund le  4A and i f  you can tu rn ,  a l l  the  way 

p lease,  to  page 402,  tha t ’s  –  sor ry  under  the  las t  tab ,  there  

you shou ld  f ind  Annexure  YL15,  a re  you there?  10 

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  ser ies  o f  handwr i t ten  no tes ,  

f i rs t l y  on  Weber  Wentze l ’s  no tepad and then some on p la in  

paper,  what  a re  these notes?  

MR LAHER:    Cha i r,  these a re  the  handwr i t ten  no tes  o f  

what  Mr  S ingh wanted incorpora ted  in to  the  memorandum 

tha t  wou ld  go  to  the  Board .   These notes  incorpo ra ted  h i s  

no tes  on  both  the  1064 memorandum tha t  wen t  to  the 

Board  as  we l l  as  the  100 memorandum tha t  wen t  to  the 

Board .   I  th ink ,  spec i f i ca l l y  Cha i r,  I  want  to  po in t  ou t ,  20 

spec i f i c  ev idence ,  and maybe i f  we  can go to  page 408 and  

409 where  you can see word ing  around the  in te res t  in  ETC 

has resu l ted  fo r  the  fo l low ing reasons and then he exp la ins  

the  reasons.   So,  to  show tha t  he ’s  thought  th is  th rough,  

and these are  h is  reasons fo r  the  increase in  ETC and 
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bas ica l l y  th is  i s  what  he  wanted me to  captu re  in to  or  t ype  

up in to  the  memorandum.   I f  you  go to  the  nex t  page,  

wh ich  is  409,  and Cha i r  I ’d  l i ke  to  re fe r  to  the  ac tua l  

memorandum and  you ’ l l  no t ice  tha t  word  fo r  word  what  i s  

wr i t ten  he re ,  i t ’s  word  fo r  word  in  the  ac tua l  memorandum 

and we can go to  the  ac tua l  memorandum I  don ’ t  know 

wh ich  ac tua l  Annexure  i t  i s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  we ’ l l  come to  tha t .  

MR LAHER:    So  what  he  says there ,  so r ry  Cha i r,   i s  the  

f i rs t  word ing  as  so  tha t  we can remember  when we get  to  10 

the  ac tua l  memo,  F inanc ia l  R isk  Management  Framework ,  

FRMF approved  by  the  Board ,  does not  permi t  the 

accept ing  fo rex  exposure  on  commi t ted  

t ransact ions…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  Mr  Laher,  le t ’s  leave tha t  

page open fo r  the  moment  a t  page 409 in  the  f i le  – the 

Bund le  4A.   Le t ’s  go  back to  your  supp lementary  –  sor ry  

your  Ru le  34  s ta tement  a t  Bund le  4B page 510,  you ’ve  

exp la ined to  the  Cha i rpe rson a t  paragraph 34 how th is  

happened,  you ’ve  re fer red  now to  the  no tes  and u l t imate ly,  20 

I  take  i t  tha t ,  a  memorandum was then produced.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you say a  copy  o f  th is  

memorandum,  da ted 23 May 2014 i s  a t tached  to  th is  

s ta tement  as  Annexure  YL25,  le t ’s  go  to  tha t ,  you f ind  i t  a t  



21 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 288 
 

Page 80 of 122 
 

page 550,  i s  th is  the  memorandum? 

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  you  look  a t  i t ,  i t ’s  says i t ’s  to  the 

Board  o f  D i rec tors  and i t ’s  f rom Br ian  Mole fe .  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You had been prepar ing  i t  though on 

beha l f  o f  Mr  S ingh.   

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see ,  and the  purpose o f  the  memo 

is  reco rded a t  paragraph one fo r  the  BOD to  no te  or  to  10 

no te  o f  the  reasons fo r  the  inc rease in  the  ETC and then to  

request  tha t  body  to  approve the  increase.   

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    From R3.871b i l l i on  to  R4.840b i l l i on .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  you  tu rn  fo rward ,  th is  i s  qu i te  a  

lengthy  document ,  i t  conc ludes a t  page 563 and tha t  was,  

u l t imate ly,  the  recommendat ion .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  was recommended by  Mr  S ingh 20 

and Mr  Gama and  then s igned by  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You wanted to  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson,  

i f  you  s t i l l  have open page 409 o f  the  handwr i t ten  no tes  in  

Bund le  4A,  do  you want  to  c ross- re fer?  



21 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 288 
 

Page 81 of 122 
 

MR LAHER:    Thank you.   So,  Cha i r,  i f  you  look on  page  

555 bu l le t  po in t  number  25 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR LAHER:    Okay so ,  bu l le t  po in t  number  25  i f  you  cross  

re ference page 409 o f  the  f i rs t  Bund le  to  page 555  o f  the 

second Bund le ,  spec i f i ca l l y  bu l le t  po in t  number  25 ,  the   

word ing ,  F inanc ia l  R isk  Management  Framework ,  FRMF,  

approved by  the  Board  does not  permi t  Transnet  accept ing  

fo rex  exposure  on  commi t ted  t ransact ions word  fo r  word  as  

you can see in  h is  handwr i t ing .   The second paragraph,  10 

SARB a lso  does  not  permi t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  accept  open 

exposure  on  fo re ign  cur rency cont rac t ,  you can see i t s  

word  fo r  word .  The th i rd  –  then there ’s  another  paragraph,  

where  i t  says  consequent ly  wh ich  is  bu l le t  28 ,  

consequent ly  the  cost  o f  fo re ign  cur rency edg ing  to  

m i t iga te  and pro tec t  the  company aga ins t  fo re ign  cur rency  

deva lua t ion  is  an  inherent  cos t  o f  the  t ransact ion .   So,  

those are  a l l  –  I ’m  not  go ing  to  go  th rough a l l  o f  them,  

Cha i r,  bu t  you can see i t ’s  word  fo r  word .   He bas i ca l l y  

wro te  i t  ou t  and a l l  I  d id  was,  sec re tar ia l  func t ion  o f  t yp ing  20 

i t  in .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  now we come to  the 

impor tan t  paragraph,  35  in  your  Ru le  34  s ta tement  a t  page  

510.   Th is  i s  where  you now dea l  w i th  pa ragraph 64 o f  Mr  

Ca l la rd ’s  s ta tement ,  p lease take  us  th rough tha t .  
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MR LAHER:    So ,  paragraph 35,  Cha i r,  on  page 510,  Mr  

S ingh then to ld  me to  contac t  Mr  Ca l la rd  and request  tha t  

he  update  the  ne t  p resent  va lue  number  tha t  was requ i red  

fo r  the  memorandum.   I  sent  the  dra f t  memo to  Mr  Ca l la rd ,  

th is  i s  the  memo…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     Jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand,  th is  i s  

then before  the  memo was comple ted?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  YL25 is  the  comple ted  memo? 

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 35 dea ls  w i th  the  process 

o f  comple t ion?  

MR LAHER:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  car ry  on .  

MR LAHER:    Th is  i s  the  memo tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  re fers  to  in  

parag raph 64 o f  h is  s ta tement .   Mr  Ca l la rd  prepared the  

NPV for  the  or ig ina l  bus iness case and then du ly  p rov ided  

the  NPV for  the  memo.   Mr  Ca l l a rd  ra ises  issues there  bu t  

the  issues he ra i sed in  h is  s ta tement ,  a t  no  s tage d id  he  

ra ise  those issues w i th  me or  ra ise  any quer ies  about  the  20 

dra f t  memo or  i t s  contents ,  inc lud ing  the  issues he  ra ises  

in  h is  s ta tement  a t  the  Commiss ion  about  the  use o f  the  

Yen to  …[ ind is t inc t ]  and the  pr i ce ,  the  increas ing  ETC or  

the  pr ic ing…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Jus t  hang on a  moment .   Mr  Ca l la rd ,  
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in  paragraph 64 s imp ly  dea ls  w i th  the  increase by  a  b i l l i on  

rand o f  the  ETC,  tha t ’s  what  he ’s  dea l ing  w i th .   Now 

inso fa r  as  he ’s  imp l ica t ing  you,  what  i s  your  response to  

tha t?  

MR LAHER:    Sor ry  repeat  tha t  quest ion  aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Ca l la rd  seems,  in  some or  o ther  

way,  to  be  imp l i ca t ing  you in  re la t ion  to  the  increase in  a  

b i l l i on  rand o f  the  p r ice ,  what  i s  your  c r i sp  response to  

tha t?  

MR LAHER:    So ,  number  one,  I  wou ld  no t  have approved  10 

the  pr ice ,  number  two,  I  d idn ’ t  have the  de legat ion  to  

approve the  p r ice ,  number  th ree ,  i t  was approved  by  the  

s tee r ing  commi t tee .   So,  I  cannot  be  respons ib le  fo r  

someth ing  I  cannot  approve and  number  two is ,  where  i t  

re la tes  to  the  increase in  p r i ce ,  I  ra ise  the  issues,  as  

you ’ve  heard  in  my s ta tement ,  I  ra ise  i ssues about  p r ic ing  

to  Mr  S ingh and dur ing  the  negot ia t ions  where  I  vo iced out  

tha t  I  was not  happy w i th  the  pr ice  myse l f .   I  was prov ided 

w i th  a  reasonab le  exp lanat ion  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime and  

there fo re  my v iew is ,  tha t  quest i on  in  te rms o f  the  pr i ce  20 

shou ld  be  asked to  the  s teer ing  commi t tee ,  in  te rms  o f  why 

they accepted the  pr ice  and remember  tha t  negot ia t ion  was  

done,  no t  where  I  was present .   So,  I  don ’ t  know how the  

pr ice  was agreed  to ,  we were  to ld  a f te rwards,  th is  i s  the  

pr ice  tha t  was ag reed to .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And inso far  as  you were  invo lved in  

the  product ion  o f  the  YL25 memorandum,  do  you cons ide r  

tha t  s ign i f i can t  in  any way?  

MR LAHER:    Obv ious ly,  i f  the  pr ic ing  –  ja  the  memo i s  

s ign i f i can t  in  the  sense tha t  i t  requests  an  increase in  ETC 

f rom the  Board ,  so  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And  was tha t  your  own 

memorandum? 

MR LAHER:    No,  i t  wasn ’ t  my memorandum,  the  

memorandum – i t  s ta r ted  a t  the  Transnet  Group Cap i ta l  10 

Depar tment ,  i t ’s  par t  o f  a  s tandard  process.   The normal  

p rocess in  request ing  an  ETC,  there ’s  a  depar tment  tha t  

dea ls  w i th  i t ,  i t ’s  ca l led  the  Transnet  Cap i ta l  Depar tment ,  

they dea l  w i th  a l l  the  approva ls  requ i red  fo r  a  request  in  

the  ETC and i t  wou ld  go  th rough the  normal  approva l  

channe ls .   The normal  approva l  channe ls  wou ld  be  to  go  

th rough Investment  Commi t tee  e tce tera ,  e tce tera .   They 

prepared the  dra f t  memorandum so I  rece ived the  dra f t  

memorandum f rom the  Transnet  Group Cap i ta l  Depar tment  

f i rs t  then I  was  asked to  update  or  inser t  ed i t s  to  tha t  20 

memorandum tha t  I ’d  rece ived and a lso  ob ta in  in fo rmat ion  

f rom o the r  pa r t ies .   So,  I  go t  in fo rmat ion  f rom Mr  Ca l la rd ,  

spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  the  NPV and whoever  e l se  needed  to  buy  

inputs  in to  tha t  memorandum.   The bu lk  o f  the  

memorandum was Mr  S ingh bas ica l l y,  say ing  what  goes  
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in to  the  memorandum.   The inputs  I  p rov ided was the  wa lk  

fo rward  par t  wh ich  we w i l l  come to  in  the  par t i cu la r  

memorandum where  I  d id  the  ca lcu la t ion  o f  the  wa lk  

fo rward  f rom R34mi l l ion  to  the  R44mi l l ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  do  you have anyth ing  e lse  to  

say in  answer  to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  pa ragraph 64?  

MR LAHER:    So ,  in  te rms o f  64  I  cannot  be  he ld  

respons ib le  fo r  the  pr ice  where  i t  was not  my accoun tab i l i t y  

and a l so ,  I  was not  invo l ved I  never  made the  dec i s ion .   

So,  i t ’s  comple te ly  wrong where  he ’s  t ry ing  to  ho ld  me  10 

accountab le  fo r  someth ing ,  I  cannot  be  he ld  respons ib le  

fo r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  then a t  paragraph 36 you  

have a  lengthy  parag raph wh ich  cu lm inates  then in  an  

answer  to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  parag raph  67,  can you dea l  w i th  

parag raph 36 p lease.  

MR LAHER:    Sure ,  so  Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  issue Mr  Ca l la rd  

ra ised about  why was the  yen ra te  used to  do  the  wa lk  

fo rward  o f  the  pr ic ing  as  we l l  as  an  exp lanat ion  o f  what  a  

wa lk  fo rward  is .   So,  here  are  two th ings,  I ’ l l  go  th rough an 20 

exp lanat ion  o f  what  a  wa lk  fo rward  is  in  te rms  o f  the  

de f in i t ion  o f  a  wa lk  fo rward  because when Mr  Ca l la rd  was 

present ing  he  was present ing  the  de f in i t ion  o f  a  p ro jec t ion  

no t  a  wa lk  fo rward .   There ’s  a  d i f fe rence between  a  wa lk  

fo rward  and pro jec t ion .   I f  I  can  exp la in ,  a  wa lk  fo rward  
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s ta r ts  w i th  two g ivens.   You have  the  f i rs t  g iven wh ich  is  

the  pr ice  o f  R34mi l l ion  wh ich  was in  the  memorandum we 

re fer red  to  ear l ie r  and we can go back,  and I ’ ve  h igh l igh ted  

i t  in  the  memorandum.  I t  i s  the  f ina l  p r ice  tha t  was agreed 

to  o f  R44mi l l ion ,  those are  two g ivens fa i t  accompl i ,  you  

cannot  change those.   That  was  presented to  the  Board  

and s igned o f f ,  th is  i s  what  was cont rac ted  fo r.   A wa lk  

fo rward  wou ld  then say,  okay you ’ve  go t  R34mi l l ion ,  you ’ve  

go t  R44mi l l ion  how do you get  f rom R34mi l l ion  to  

R44mi l l ion ,  tha t ’s  a  wa lk  fo rward .   A pro jec t ion  is  you have 10 

a  s ta r t ing  po in t  and then you need  to  p ro jec t  in to  the  fu tu re  

in to  what  i t ’s  go ing  to  be ,  we don ’ t  know what  the  fu tu re  

ou tcome is .   Th i s  i s ,  you a l ready know what  the  fu tu re  

ou tcome is  because you ’ve  been  g iven the  f ina l  number.   

So tha t ’s  the  d i f fe rence between  a  wa lk  fo rward  and a  

pro jec t ion ,  I  th ink  tha t  was the  confus ion  wh i ls t  he  was  

present ing .    

The second th ing  around,  spec i f i ca l l y,  the  wa lk  

fo rward ,  so  the  wa lk  fo rward  wou ld  en ta i l  tak ing  the  

R34mi l l ion  and wa lk ing  i t  fo rward  to  the  R44mi l l ion .   I t  20 

wou ld  en ta i l  tak ing  the  e lements  tha t  make i t  up ,  so  fo r  

example ,  the  e lements  tha t  wou ld  make up R34mi l l ion  to  

the  R44mi l l ion ,  s im i la r  to  what  I ’ ve  presented ea r l ie r  in  my 

own ca l cu la t ion  wou ld  be  the  esca la t ion  cost ,  the  hedg ing  

cost ,  the  var ia t ions  e t ce tera ,  e tce tera .   I  wou ld  take  each  
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o f  those e lements  and I  wou ld  wa lk  i t  fo rward  f rom 

R34mi l l ion  to  R44mi l l ion .   The reason why the  yen ra te  was  

used –  and le t  me jus t  go  a  b i t  more  s lower,  th rough the  

process,  in  my s ta tement  then I ’ l l  come to  the  reason why  

the  yen ra te  was used.   So,  Mr  S ingh asked me to  p repare  

tha t  wa lk  fo rward  f rom the  bus iness case pr ice  and I  

exp la ined what  the  wa lk  fo rward  was about .   Mr  S ingh a lso  

then exp la ined the  assumpt ions used in  the  bus iness case.   

Cha i r,  the  reason  why I  po in t  tha t  ou t  i s  because I  was not  

invo l ved in  the  bus iness case.   So,  I  don ’ t  know what  the 10 

assumpt ions were ,  I  don ’ t  know how they go  to  tha t  

number,  I  came co ld  because I  was g iven th is  r i gh t  a t  the 

end to  say,  here ’s  the  bus iness case number,  now do the  

wa lk  fo rwards.  

So he to ld  me what  the  assumpt ions were ,  he  to ld  

me how they go t  to  the  bus iness case pr i ce  and he asked  

me to  wa lk  fo rward  the  pr ice  fo r  the  bus iness case  th rough  

to  the  in fo rmat ion  –  based on the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  CSR 

prov ided th rough to  the  f ina l  R44mi l l ion .  

The method tha t  he  asked me to  do  the  re -base 20 

l in ing  or  the  wa lk  fo rward  was not  un reasonab le ,  i t ’s  a  

normal  f inanc ia l  way o f  do ing  th ings.   He exp la ined to  me 

the  assumpt ions,  a lso ,  the  assumpt ions tha t  were  used in  

the  bus iness case.   So,  fo r  example  the  assumpt ion  used 

in  the  bus iness case was a  yen/ rand ra te  o f  .098823 and  
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tha t ’s ,  as  I  sa id  fa i r  to  the  company,  i t ’s  in  the  bus iness 

case,  i t ’s  w r i t ten  i t ’s  no t  someth ing  you cannot  change.  So,  

he  exp la ined to  me,  th is ,  in  the  bus iness case and  po in ted  

i t  ou t  to  me in  the  ac tua l  word ing  o f  the  bus iness case.   He 

a lso  exp la ined to  me tha t  the  bus iness case was bas i ca l l y  

yen and tha t  the  pr ice  must  rea l l y  be  esca la ted  in  yen  

because the  bus iness case is  based in  yen.   That ’s  no t  

unreasonab le  as  we l l ,  i t ’s  normal  f inanc ia l  p r inc ip les .   

You ’ re  g iven someth ing ,  you work  w i th  what  you ’ re  g i ven  

you don ’ t  make assumpt ions to  change i t  because tha t  10 

exposes the  ca lcu la t ion  to  unnecessary  compl ica t ion  and  

r i sk  o f  m isca lcu la t ion .  

Then,  wh i ls t  he  was po in t ing  a l l  o f  th is  ou t  to  me,  I  

asked h im the  quest ion ,  sure l y  there ’s  more  than one  

cur rency invo l ved,  h is  response  to  me was,  no  the  

bus iness case was based on  yen there fore  do  the  

ca l cu la t ions based on the  yen  ra te .   Accord ing ly,  I  

compl ied  and d id  the  wa lk  fo rward  ca l cu la t ion  based  on the  

yen ra te .    

So,  f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  I  th ink  Mr  Ca l la rd ,  when  20 

he p resented h is  ev idence,  he  d idn ’ t  unders tand how to  do  

i t  f inanc ia l l y,  he  d idn ’ t  –  we l l  I ’m  put t ing  words in  h i s  mouth  

bu t  my v iew is  he  d idn ’ t  unders tand how d id  the  f inanc ia l  

wa lk  fo rward  and there ’s  a  d i f fe rence between  a  wa lk  

fo rward  and a  pro jec t ion .   Cha i r,  i f  you  a l low me,  maybe I  
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can  put  i t  in  s imp ler  te rms because he was say ing  why not  

use  the  do l la r  i t ’s  a  Ch inese company why are  you us ing  

the  yen?  My response to  tha t  i s ,  I  don ’ t  know why they 

used the  yen ra te  in  the i r  bus iness case I  wasn ’ t  there ,  I  

wasn ’ t  invo lved in  the  bus iness case,  tha t  was done way  

before  I  go t  invo lved.   So,  tha t  quest ion  must  be  asked o f  

the  peop le  tha t  pu t  the  bus iness case togethe r.    

The second quest ion  is ,  okay,  even i f  tha t ’s  the  

case then why d id  you cont inue to  use the  yen and I ’m 

say ing  i t ’s  no t  un reasonab le  to  use the  yen because tha t ’s  10 

how you wou ld  do  i t  when you a re  g iven a  fa i t  accompl i ,  

you ’ re  g iven someth ing ,  you can ’ t  change i t .  I f  I  can  g ive  

you a  s imp le  example ,  i f  Johnny  is  asked to  –  or  you ’ re  

to ld ,  Johnny ran  a  race,  Johnny ran  the  race,  i t  s ta r ted  a t  

10am i t  f in ished a t  11am and the  race was 10km long.   You  

are  asked to  ca l cu la te  a  speed tha t  Johnny t rave l led  a t .  

Because you ’ re  g iven k i lomet res  and you ’ re  g i ven t ime,  

your  answer  i s  go ing  to  be  k i lomet res  per  hour.  Now i f  you 

are  to ld  the  race is  meant  to  be  in  Johannesburg  bu t  

Johnny eventua l l y  ran  the  race in  Eng land,  where  they use 20 

mi les  per  hour,  why wou ld  you change your  ca l cu la t ion ,  

your  answer  i s  s t i l l  i n  k i lomet res  per  hour.   I f  you  had to  do  

i t  in  m i les  per  hour  –  because tha t  was the  br ie f ,  the  br ie f  

was,  g ive  me the  answer  in  k i lomet res  per  hour.  I f  the  br ie f  

was g iven in  m i les  per  hour,  then you wou ld  go  and  t ry  and 
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do  a  reca lcu la t ion  bu t  obv ious ly  do ing  a  reca lcu la t i on  you 

conver t  k i lomet res  to  m i les  wh ich  then compl ica tes  the  

who le  t ransact ion .    

So,  a lways s t i ck  to  the  br ie f  and do the  ca l cu la t ion  

w i th  the  inputs  tha t  you are  g iven.  There ’s  no  need to  go  

and compl ica te  the  ca l cu la t ion  by  us ing  anothe r  cur rency  

and do ing  a  c ross-cur rency convers ion  because you ’ re  no t  

go ing  to  ge t  the  co r rec t  answer  and fo r  me th is  i s  a  

reasonab le  bas i s  o f  do ing  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  what  Mr  Ca l la rd  sa id  a t  67  in  the  10 

second par t  i s  tha t  th is  was most  unusua l  as  the  Japanese 

Yen wou ld  be  assoc ia ted  w i th  Mi tsu i  the  Japanese 

company and not  CSR,  the  Ch inese company,  you ’ve  

answered tha t .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i t  says  fu r the r,  

“The cash f low spreadsheet  re f lec ts  US Do l la r  fo r  

CSR” .  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he says,  20 

“From the  ownersh ip  o f  these  documents  and 

spreadsheets ,  S ingh and Laher  shou ld  ta lk  to  th is  

anomaly.  

MR LAHER:    Yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  do  you say about  the  fac t  tha t  
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the  cash f low worksheets  re f lec t  US Do l la r  fo r  CSR? 

MR LAHER:    So ,  the  cash f low worksheets  are  based on 

what  was f ina l l y  agreed to  w i th  CSR.   So tha t ’s  post  

negot ia t ion ,  remember  the  bus iness case is  p re -negot ia t ion  

i t ’s  someth ing  tha t  i s  fa i t  accompl i  i t ’s  g iven to  you  a l ready  

in  yen.   Cash f low is  now a f te r  you ’ve  a l ready negot ia ted ,  

and these are  the  cash f lows fo r  the  locos tha t  CSR are  

go ing  to  de l i ve r.   When CSR prov ide  the  cash f low they 

g ive  i t  to  you in  US Do l la rs  and tha t ’s  why you have a  US  

Do l la r  cash f low and then the  bus iness case i s  in  yen.   As  I  10 

sa id ,  I  can ’ t  answer  as  to  why i t  was in  yen but  tha t ’s  what  

was g iven to  me.   Cor rec t ly,  i f  i t  was done p roper ly,  

whoever  c rea ted the  bus iness case shou ld  have sa id  we ’ re  

cont rac t ing  w i th  a  Ch inese company,  i t  shou ld  be  in  yen or  

in  do l la rs  bu t  th is  was not  done ,  so  you can ’ t  go  and 

change what ’s  a l ready on a  p iece  o f  paper,  s igned  o f f  by 

the  Board ,  i t ’s  there  a l ready.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  and  then you –  a t  the  end o f  

parag raph 42,  a t  page –  sor ry  a t  paragraph 42 a t  page 512  

you dea l  w i th  parag raph 60 and tha t ’s  the  up f ron t  20 

payments .   You  want  to  move  towards tha t ,  i s  there  

anyth ing  e l se  tha t  you want  to  dea l  w i th ,  you ’ve  dea l t  w i th  

parag raph 36,  you ’ve  prov ided your  exp lanat ion  or  your  

answer,  as  fa r  as  you ’ re  concerned to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

parag raph 67,  do  you need to  dea l  w i th  37  and 38 or  can  
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one go to  the  head ing ,  “Advanced payments”? .   

MR LAHER:    We can move on.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so ,  le t ’s  go  to  the  head ing ,  

“Advance payments” ,  a t  page 512  wh ich  cu lm inates  in  the  

s ta tement  tha t  you make a t  pa ragraph 42,  do  you  want  to  

dea l  w i th  tha t  p lease?  

MR LAHER:    Yes Cha i r.   Cha i r,  so  i f  you  move on to  

parag raph 39,  so  I ’ l l  dea l  w i th  the  paragraphs 141 to  152 

as  we l l  because what  Mr  Ca l la rd  ra ises  in  paragraph 60,  he  

ra ises  as  we l l  under  1064 paragraph 141 to  152 even 10 

though he doesn ’ t  imp l ica te  me in  the  parag raph  141 to  

152 and I  jus t  want  to  p rov ide  fu r ther  input  on  –  w i th  

regard  to  the  advanced payments .    

So,  i t ’s  common knowledge tha t  the  management  o f  

Transnet ’s  long- te rm and shor t - te rm fund ing  and cash f low 

is  a  funct ion  o f  the  Transnet  Treasure r  and the  Transnet  

Treasurer  repor ted  in to  the  GCFO,  a t  tha t  po in t  was Mr  

S ingh,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  who was the  Transnet  Treasure r  a t  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime.   A lso ,  I  was not  invo lved in  the  management  

o f  Transnet ’s  cash or  fund ing ,  dur ing  the  1064 and the  100  20 

locomot ive  t ransact ion ,  Mr  S ingh  who was,  e f fec t i ve ly  in  

charge o f  the  Treasury  Depar tment  to ld  the  negot ia t ing  

team tha t  Transnet  had the  fund ing  ava i lab le  and tha t  the  

advanced payments  were  a f fo rdab le  to  Transnet .    

I  d id  no t  have  the  de legat ion  to  accept  the  
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advanced payments  proposa ls  f rom b idders .   The sub-

commi t tee  or  the  s tee r ing  commi t tee  accepted the  

advanced payment  te rms,  and they accepted the  pr ic ing  o f  

the  locomot ives .   I  agree,  the  quantum o f  the  advanced 

payments  wou ld  pu t  a  s ta in  on  Transnet ’s  fund ing  and cash  

pos i t ion .   Shou ld  the  rea l  vo lumes,  as  env isaged in  the  

market ing  s t ra tegy no t  mater ia l i se .   So,  in  conc lus ion ,  I  

don ’ t  know why Mr  Ca l la rd  i s  d i rec t ing  tha t  quest ion  a t  me  

because I  was never  accountab le  fo r  Treasury  funct ion .   

There  is  a  Treasure r  tha t  dea ls  w i th  i t  and i t s  pa r t  o f  the  10 

negot ia t ing ,  Mr  Smi t  was the  representa t i ve  as  we l l .   Mr  

S ingh was the  overa l l  accountab i l i t y  fo r  the  Treasury  

funct ion  and the  overa l l  accountab i l i t y  fo r  Transne t ’s  cash  

f low pos i t ion .   So,  he  wou ld  be  accountab le ,  and he needs 

to  answer  tha t  t ype o f  quest ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now th is  advanced payment  

guarantee,  was  tha t  someth ing  dea l t  w i th  in  the  

memorandum tha t  you had p repared on beha l f  o f  Mr  S ingh? 

MR LAHER:    I  can ’ t  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  i t  par t  o f  the  cont rac t  o r  i s  an  20 

advanced payment  guarantee is  tha t  someth ing  tha t  comes 

a f te rwards,  i s  i t  a  separa te  negot ia t ion?  

MR LAHER:    So ,  the  guarantee i s  a  document  wh ich  the  

b idders  wou ld  s ign  to  say,  we guarantee the  advance  

payment ,  normal ly  a  bank wou ld  i ssue the  advance 
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payment  and guarantee.  The advance payments  wh ich  Mr  

Ca l la rd  re fers  to  is  the  ac tua l  payment  tha t  was made.   So,  

you know,  rands or  do l la rs  pa id  to  the  supp l ie rs  and those  

payments  wou ld  be  made be fore  de l i very  o f  the  

locomot ives .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Ca l la rd  says,  a t  parag raph 60  

tha t  he  was shocked and as tounded to  no te  tha t  the  

advanced payment  guarantee fo r  CSR 100 was 30%,  what  

i s  your  s imp le  answer  to  tha t?  

MR LAHER:  Mr Singh said they were affordable and that 10 

Transnet had funding to  – to afford those advanced 

payments f i rst ly and secondly the advanced payments were 

agreed to as part  of  the package deal  i f  I  can ca l l  i t  by the 

steer ing commit tee.  

 So when Mr Singh told us at  the steer ing commit tee 

accepted the pr ice of  R44 mi l l ion they accepted – he a lso 

said they accepted the pr ice of  R44 mi l l ion wi th the 

advanced payments that  go wi th i t .    

 So those are decisions that  were made at  that  level  

in terms of  the – the advanced payments.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   So were you involved in making this  

decision? 

MR LAHER:   No not  at  al l .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now Mr Cal lard at  paragraph 60 this  stems 

f rom the fact  that  he and some col leagues received an emai l  
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f rom you with spread sheets of  the f inal  cash f low.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So he gets this  f rom the spread sheets of  

f inal  cash f low.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Just  address that  issue – did you populate 

those spread sheets? 

MR LAHER:   So wi th regard to the cash f low spread sheets 

we would have received cash f lows f rom the bidders but  Mr 

Danie was also involved wi th the populated cash f low spread 10 

sheets whi lst  we were busy wi th the negot iat ions.   And he 

needed those in  order to work out  what the cost  of  the 

foreign exchange hedging would be.   So he would have 

populated those spread sheets for the cash f lows.  

 And in some case maybe I  would have helped him 

populate the spread sheet  and the populat ion would have 

been done based on what the bidders submit ted to us saying 

these are the cash f lows.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So let  us then move on.   So those are the 

three paragraphs 60,  64 and 67 relat ing to the 100 electr ic  20 

locomot ives.   You have explained to me during consul tat ion 

that  you can actual ly a l ine above the heading 17 March 

negot iat ions spread sheet  at  the foot  of  512.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Because f rom here onwards you now 
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deal ing wi th the 1064 locomot ives.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Whereas previously you have been deal ing 

wi th the 100 e lect r ic motor – locomot ives.   You say:   

“At  paragraph 43 at  the foot  of  512 that  in 

the paragraphs that  fo l low I  deal  wi th  

paragraphs 206 to 215 of  Cal lard’s 

statement. ”  

 Now we know that  paragraph 211 then fal ls in  

between that .   And 211 you wi l l  recal l  deals wi th your excel  10 

spread sheets of  17 March.   This is di fferent  f rom the cash 

f low spread sheets.   These are your excel  spread sheets of  

17 March relat ing to the 1064 negot iat ions.   He says you 

were the author.  He says the informat ion contained in – he 

f inds i t  d i ff icul t  to  bel ieve that  i t  is  t rue and correct  and also 

there is then a cr i t ic ism of  you not  sharing this informat ion in  

t ime.  

 So this  sect ion then deals head on wi th the March 17 

negot iat ions spread sheets.  And i f  you turn forward to page 

512 you wi l l  see that  at  paragraph 49 you actual ly then 20 

address paragraph 211.   And further on in your statement at  

page 515 at  the foot  you start  deal ing wi th paragraph 208.   

56 you deal  wi th 208.1 that  is where he quest ions the 

accuracy of  the informat ion.   57 you deal  wi th 208.2.   58 – 

208.3 and so you go on al l  the way to 62.  
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MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Where you deal  wi th 208.7 and then you 

come back to  paragraph 211 and then over the page at  64 

you deal  wi th 211.1 and we can then stop above paragraph 

85.   Is that  correct? 

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So what then remains for you to do is to 

essent ia l ly  take the Chairperson through paragraphs 43 to  

64 deal ing wi th th is – this issue.  

MR LAHER:    Sure.   Thank you.    Chair  i f  I  can move to 10 

paragraph 44 on page 513.   So the explanat ion I  th ink there 

is a lot  of  context  in that  background at  Supply Chain.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So you moving to what paragraph? 

MR LAHER:   44.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A lot  of  explanat ion and background which 

wi th regard to the spread sheets that  needs to be provided.   

So f i rst ly there is two spread sheets.   There is one for  diesel  

and there is one for elect r ic.  

 The second part  to understand is these spread 20 

sheets were created over a per iod of  t ime.  So wi thin a 

spread sheet  i f  you understand a spread sheet  there are tabs 

at  the bot tom which we cal l  work sheets.   So wi thin the 

spread sheet  for d iesel  and electr ic they wi l l  need tabs at  the 

bot tom of  the spread sheet .  
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 And those tabs i f  I  can name them one would cal l  –

one would be cal led base cost ,  one would be cal led base 

cost  excluding TE. Another one wi l l  be cal led negot iat ions 

and each of  them had di fferent  calculat ions wi thin them.  

 So let  us start  wi th the tab marked base cost .   So to  

understand – oh sorry before you even get  to the – to the tab 

marked base cost .   Understand there were many spread 

sheets prepared.   So even though there are two which are 

dated 17 March pr ior to the two dated 17 March there are 

many spread sheets before that .  10 

 So whi lst  the negot iat ions were on-going we prepared 

spread sheets as and when pr ic ing – new pr ic ing came in.   

So for example and I  know there is an annexure for that  I  

th ink i t  is Annexure YL26 where I  g ive you a view of  the 

numerous number of  spread sheets which were prepared 

over a per iod of  the evaluat ion and negot iat ions.  

 I  do not  know Chai r  i f  you want to go to YL26 now or  

should we come back to i t?  

ADV MYBURGH:   We wi l l  come back to that .  

MR LAHER:   Okay.   So – so understand there is  many 20 

spread sheets f i rst ly.   Secondly wi thin the spread sheets 

there is a number of  tabs.   I f  I  explain further i f  you look at  

the tabs wi thin the spread sheet  a tab marked base cost  that  

is – that  tab’s spread sheet  or work sheet  was prepared 

dur ing the evaluat ion phase.   So that  was prepared in  
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November 2013 where there were six people evaluat ing.  

 Each of  those six people had access to that  tab.   And 

each of  those six people would capture informat ion wi thin 

the tab.    

 The informat ion that  is captured wi thin the spread 

sheet  comes f rom bidder submissions.   I t  is not  something 

we cal  – i t  is not  something we would pluck f rom the sky.   

There would be documentat ion and that  is again at tached in  

my Annexure YL27 where I  prov ide the evidence of  the 

bidder documentat ion that  correlates to the numbers in the 10 

spread sheets.  

 So I  know i t  sounds a bi t  compl icated but  very simply 

a number of  spread sheets,  tabs wi thin  the spread sheet .   

The base cost  tab was prepared dur ing evaluat ions  The 

base cost  excluding TE tab was prepared dur ing the 

evaluat ions.   Then the tab marked negot iat ions was prepared 

dur ing the negot iat ions.   The tab marked negot iat ions there 

were many spread sheets that  were prepared for that .  

 The spread sheet  Mr Cal lard refers to are the f inal  

spread sheets that  were f inal ised on the 17 March.   So just  20 

to g ive you some background behind i t .  

 Chair  I  th ink I  have deal t  wi th 44 and 45.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Just  before you move on you wanted to  

take the Chairperson to YL26.  That  you found at  page 565.    

MR LAHER:   Chair  on page 565 that  is a screen shot  of  the 
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spread sheets that  were created dur ing the – dur ing the 

tender.   And you wi l l  not ice there are a number of  spread 

sheets there.   This is  only one of  the – a sect ion of  the 

port ion of  the hard dr ive that  contained these spread sheets.  

 So i f  you note there is – so 1,  2,  3,  4,  5 down there is  

a f i le ca l led Negot iat ion Diesels 5 March.   Then there is 

another f i le cal led Negot iat ion Diesels 10 March.   Then there 

is another f i le Negot iat ion Diesels 12 March.   Then there is 

another one Negot iat ion Diesel  17 March that  would be the 

f inal  one.   Also there is another one cal led Negot iat ion 10 

Diesels 18 February and 27 February.    

 So we created these spread sheets as and when we 

were get t ing new pr ic ing proposals f rom the b idders.   And 

these spread sheets were effect ive ly a recordal  of  what the 

bidders were giv ing us in terms of  the pr ic ing whi lst  the 

negot iat ions were going on.  

 Thanks Chair  that  is YL26.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And you have told the Chai rperson i f  one 

goes back to page 513 at  paragraph 46 that  these spread 

sheets referred to  by Mr Cal lard the March 17 spread sheets 20 

were then the f ina l  vers ion of  them. 

MR LAHER:   Correct  ja they were the f inal  vers ion of  these 

spread sheets.   I  th ink I  have explained paragraph 47 Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Can I  take you to 48 and ask you.  Who 

was responsible then for populat ing and keeping these 
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spread sheets? 

MR LAHER:   Okay.   So we start  wi th the evaluat ions.   There 

were s ix people responsible for populat ing the – that  spread 

sheet .   Do you want me to name them or is i t  f ine? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR LAHER:   Okay so the members of  the team the cross-

funct ional  evaluat ion team f inance evaluat ions were Mr 

Mul ler,  Mr Val l i ,  Mr Traletsi ,  Mr Danie Smit ,  Mr Thabo Siaphi  

and mysel f .  

 So we in tota l  we would have populated the sheets.   10 

Any one of  us had access and any one of  us would have 

populated those sheets wi thin the spread sheet .  

 That  relates to the sheets we populated doing the 

evaluat ions i .e.  the sheets marked base costs and base 

costs TE.  Cont inuing for the sheet  marked negot iat ions 

there were two of  us involved mysel f  and Mr Danie Smit  and 

ei ther one of  us could have populated the informat ion into 

those sheets.  

 Chair  on paragraph 49 to also understand that  the 

master version of  these spread sheets were stored on a 20 

master computer and that  master computer was kept  by Ms 

Mdletshe.   We d id not  have the password to that  master  

computer.   They would log -  a Supply Chain Services would 

log us in at  the start  of  the day and they would log us out  at 

the end of  the day.  
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 So i t  is  c lear Chair  in response to Mr Cal lard’s  

statement in paragraph 2.1 that  I  was the pr imary author is 

completely wrong.   I  was not  the pr imary author I  was one of  

the authors f rom a team of  s ix in evaluat ions and a team of  

two in the negot ia t ions.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So I  understand this term author.   From 

what you have explained i t  does not  seem that  there was any 

author i t  was more a data capturer funct ion,  is that  correct? 

MR LAHER:   Correct  100%.  And when I  go through YL 27 I  

wi l l  explain – but  I  wi l l  explain that  port ion.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes please carry on.  

MR LAHER:   So now we are at  paragraph 50 Chai r.   So as I  

was saying the in format ion that  is captured on these spread 

sheets were obtained di rect ly f rom bidder submissions.   That  

was not  something we plucked f rom the sky and I  wi l l  show 

you the evidence in – when we get  to Annexure YL27 in  

terms of  where the informat ion comes f rom.  

 Paragraph 51 deals wi th the same thing I  said ear l ier 

in terms of  the informat ion on the negot iat ion work sheet  

were also obtained f rom bidder submissions and when I  get  20 

to – I  take you through YL27 I  a lso show you how the 

informat ion correlates to the informat ion f rom the bidders.  

 I  th ink paragraph 52 is important  Chair  in that  i t  is 

not  the spread sheets that  determine the f inal  pr ice.   The 

spread sheets were the recordal .   A t  the determinat ion of  the 
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f inal  pr ice was based on the outcome of  the negot iat ion 

process in terms of  what was approved or what was 

accepted by the sub-commit tee of  the steer ing commit tee for  

the locomot ives.  

 So Mr Cal lard had i t  incorrect  when he talks about 

the spread sheets determining the f inal  pr ice.   They did not  

determine the f inal  pr ice.   I t  was merely a recordal  of  what 

was given to us dur ing the negot iat ions to keep t rack.   And 

the recordal  was to keep t rack.   So you have to keep t rack 

dai ly of  what is happening.   So we recorded so we can even 10 

manage what is being provided for us over a per iod of  t ime.                          

ADV MYBURGH:   A lr ight  so in paragraph 50,  51 and 52 you 

refer to the ser ies of  annexures they start ing wi th 27.   You 

ment ioned 27,  28,  29 and 30 in al l  three of  those 

paragraphs,  correct? 

MR LAHER:   Yes correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Can I  ask you and I  – I  understand this is  

what you wish to  do.   By way of  example go to Annexure 

YL27.  That  you found at  page 567.    

MR LAHER:   I  am ready.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes please go ahead.  

MR LAHER:   Chair  i f  you look at  paragraph – oh page 567 

you wi l l  not ice bidder 1 Bombardier is the bidder we 

speci f ical ly referr ing to here which is the f i rst  column on the 

– or the thi rd column f rom the lef t .   I t  says:  B idder 1 
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Bombardier un-escalated.   You wi l l  not ice that  th is was 

prepared dur ing the evaluat ions and i f  I  take you then wi th  

your f inger st i l l  on page 567 because this is a spread sheet  

Mr Cal lard refers to where he says that  the numbers are 

incorrect .   With your f inger on page 567 to move to page 

578.   Chai r  as background you wi l l  not ice and sorry to be 

running you around l ike this on a l l  the pages.   There is  a 

number of  pages here.   The. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   This is hardly  legible he?  At  578 except  

for the numbers on the r ight .  The middle column.  10 

MR LAHER:   Yes.   So let  me start  at  page 569 to g ive 

context .  

CHAIRPERSON:   569? 

MR LAHER:   Ja.   So on page 569 you wi l l  not ice Chai r  th is  

is a submission f rom Bombardier dated 21 November 2013 to 

Transnet.   This was the submission f rom Bombardier as part  

of  the tender evaluat ion process.  

 So they would have submit ted this document and we 

would have evaluated this document.   This was the document 

we used for the evaluat ions.   20 

 As we move on through the pages they submit ted 

many i tems in th is  document and page 570,  571,  572 are just  

responses to clar i f icat ion quest ions we asked speci f ical ly to 

Bombardier.  

 I f  we move on r ight  through to page 578.   Page 578 
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was the or ig inal  documentat ion that  was received f rom 

Bombardier as part  of  their  tender submission.  

 So I  want to show you how the numbers correlate.   

So these – just  to prove that  these numbers are not  made 

up.  The f i rst  number you see on the top there in Row number 

1 on page 578.   28788150.  That  number correlates exact ly 

to page 567 under Row number 1 base pr ice as per technical  

speci f icat ions.   28788150.  The next  l ine,  l ine 2 engineering 

support  costs t ies up exact ly 619100.  The next  l ine special 

tool ing 3762 t ies up exact ly 3762.   You wi l l  note that  the 10 

fourth l ine which is 491240 on page 578 does not  correlate 

exact ly to l ine 4 474880 and for that  there is a speci f ic note 

in terms of  why that  number does not  correlate.   And I  wi l l  

take you to that  calculat ion.   I  must  just  t ry and f ind i t  in th is  

batch Chai r.   Oh so i f  you looked at  page 568 Note number 

1.1 this is the – this is the actual  spread sheet  we used.   

This is part  of  what the evaluat ion team wrote – th is  is wi th 

the notes for my workings.   The note says? 

“The capi tal  spares were ref lected as 

491240”  20 

Which is the number you see on page 578.  

“This included both schedule A and schedule 

B spares.   Schedule B was removed and 

pr ice changed to 474880.”  

We had to remove Schedule B because Schedule B was not  
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meant to be part  of  the spares for these locomot ives.   And 

that  is how we got  to the number of  474880.  

 Cont inuing Chair  you wi l l  not ice that  the remain ing 

numbers should t ie up 45302 i t  t ies up.   12382 and i t  t ies up.   

27405 t ies up.   And then 309550 t ies up.    

 You wi l l  not ice that  on the or ig inal  b id Bombardier did  

quote for hedging costs but  the evaluat ions were not  done 

with hedging so we just  exclude i t  f rom here.  

 The opt ion real ignment was – is captured on 

Annexure YL35 and there was a speci f ic calculat ion in terms 10 

of  how to real ign the opt ions but  I  am not  going to go 

through that  detai l .  

 With regard to the exchange rates that  you see 

quoted there.   So you wi l l  note on Bombardier ’s proposal  

they quote an exchange rate of  –  or the number that  we 

calculated on the top there 32722350 on page 567.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR LAHER:   That  is the – ja.   That  number i f  you mult ip ly 

that  by the declared import  percentage of  30.2% which is  

further down the page then you d iv ide that  by the exchange 20 

rate as provided in the declared import  percentage you get  

to Euro 979069 th is was a calculat ion done by the evaluat ion 

team at  that  point  in t ime.  

 So that  is  your  – basical ly  the numbers on the base 

cost  sheet  come out .   Mr Cal lard a lso then refers to another  
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sheet .   Now I  am going to move on to show you where the 

remaining numbers come f rom.   

 Chair  i f  we can go to page 579 then.   Sorry Chair  st i l l  

wi th your f inger on page 567.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR LAHER:   You wi l l  note that  th is spread sheet  or th is work 

sheet  is base cost  excluding TE.   This was also put  together  

dur ing the evaluat ions by the team of  s ix and these numbers 

again correlate exact ly to what I  would have showed you 

ear l ier and the only di fference is when we did the second 10 

sheet  which is cost  – or base cost  excluding TE we would 

have excluded the cost  of  TE based on the decision taken by 

Supply Chain Services there for us to do the evaluat ion 

excluding TE – the point  I  ment ioned ear l ier on.  

 So i f  you look at  the let ter f rom Bombardier which in  

on page 584.   You wi l l  note the let ter dated 4 December 

2013 and speci f ical ly towards the bot tom of  the let ter under 

point  1 where we asked – where Transnet asked Bombardier,  

what would the impact  – what would the rand be impact  on 

your pr ice per locomot ive [00:21:58]  i f  you did not  use TE as 20 

a local  subcont ractor for 599 Koko but  used an al ternat ive 

local  pr ivate sector  subcontractor and you note they quoted 

a f igure of  1905514.  

 So what your f igure – wi th your f inger st i l l  on the 

or ig inal  page 567 you would note that  the number there was 
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32722350 r ight  on top there – the f i rst  l ine.   That  wi l l  then 

correlate i f  you go to page 579 there is a note on the r ight  

hand side in handwri t ing which is cal led C.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR LAHER:   So i f  you look at  the note i t  is cal led C 

32722350 correlates minus the 1905514 which is the number 

that  was quoted by Bombardier in  the let ter I  just  showed 

you now and that  equals a number of  30866836 which is the 

number on this sheet  which correlates the number 30866836.  

Again proving that  these numbers a l l  come f rom somewhere.   10 

They are not  made up and – there is science behind i t .   And 

i t  comes f rom – i t  is the recordal  o f  what has been given to  

us.  

ADV MYBURGH:  Right  I  – Mr Laher I  would l ike to move on 

i f  I  may?  I t  might  have been that  you could have presented 

this evidence in a sl ight ly c learer  way.   The Chai rperson 

might  very wel l  ask you for a schedule now.  

MR LAHER:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Where you put  out  the f igures and then 

you cross-refer for us where you f ind i t .   Are you able to do 20 

that? 

MR LAHER:   I  can do that .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So that  we do not  need to jump around 

f rom one document to the other.   I  am going to af terwards 

ask you to provide us wi th that  schedule.   But  the long and 
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the short  of  your evidence is that  there was no manipulat ion 

– this was a data capture exercise and the f igures were 

taken f rom or igina l  documents.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Proposals made by the bidders.  

MR LAHER:   Correct  100%. 

ADV MYBURGH:   That  is what you are saying? 

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And let  us then go please to page 514 

paragraph 52 you have deal t  wi th that .   Is there a need to – 10 

to deal  wi th anything else before we get  to paragraph 208?  

Paragraph 53 is something which I  know is featured in other 

of  your aff idavi ts.   Is i t  something you want to rei terate? 

MR LAHER:   I  th ink i t  is important  Chai r  I  would l ike to 

re i terate … 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes please go ahead.  

MR LAHER:   Just  to overal l  the impression I  gained dur ing 

the negot iat ions was that  the co-chairpersons Mr Singh and 

Mr Jiyane were very much focussed on the overal l  pr ice 

whereas Mr Smit  and I  were very detai led [00:25:02]  were 20 

more focussed on the detai l  pr ic ing.   So i tems l ike 

escalat ion,  batch pr ic ing etcetera they were not  very 

focussed on those.  

 So even though a detai led elements may have been 

spoken about at  var ious t imes dur ing the negot iat ions i t  was 
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not  the ir  main focus.   The effect  of  th is was that  as much as 

these components were sel f -standing components of  the 

negot iat ions in the end i t  was the overal l  pr ice that  the 

chairpersons focussed on.   And then the sub-commit tee 

made the decision on the f inal  – f ina l  pr ic ing.  

 My – my v iew I  would have preferred i f  we focussed 

on the detai ls so that  we could you know debate those 

properly but  that  was not  thei r  focus.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Can we then move to paragraph 56.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes please.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   So I  have al ready explained to you that  Mr 

Cal lard ’s paragraph 308 must be read together wi th 211.   

Because in 208 he real ly  in effect  queries var ious of  the 

f igures and informat ion contained in  the spread sheets.   And 

he does that  over the space of  seven sub-paragraphs.  

 From paragraph 56 to 62 you address those seven 

sub-paragraphs.   Now i t  seems to me that  ul t imately your  

answer is the same for al l  of  them.  Is that  correct? 

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And what is that?  So i f  Mr Cal lard says 20 

wel l  here is a potent ia l  query or an inaccuracy in  relat ion to  

A,  B,  C,  D?  What  is your answer – your overal l  answer? 

MR LAHER:   The overal l  answer Chai r  is you have seen f rom 

the evidence I  prepared is that  the spread sheets were a 

recordal  of  informat ion we received f rom bidders.   There was 
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no manipulat ion of  the numbers wi thin the spread sheet .   I  

th ink the pr inc iple  point  is the pr ic ing was not  determined by 

a spread sheet .   The pr ic ing was determined by the 

negot iat ion process and what was agreed to by the – by the 

steer ing commit tee.   Now – and i t  is not  the spread sheet  

that  you should picking on you should be – i t  is throwing 

stones in the wrong di rect ion in other words.  

 Yes there might  have been issues wi th the pr ic ing 

and yes I  a lso raised simi lar issues as I  explained ear l ier.   I  

ra ised issues about escalat ions.   I  ra ised issues about the 10 

batch pr ic ing.   So my v iew is Mr Cal lard may have a point  

yes which is the same points I  ra ised wi th my superiors.   I  

voiced my concerns.   But  i t  is not  the spread sheets that  are 

the problem.  The spread sheets were just  a  recordal .   So 

again he is throwing stones in the wrong di rect ion.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So at  56 you say:  

“With reference to paragraph 208.1 of  

Cal lard ’s statement”  And there he was 

ra ising the issue of  cost  escalat ion.   You say:  

“The cost  escalat ions as captured in the 20 

spread sheet  were obtained d irect ly f rom the 

bidder submission.”  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then four l ines i f  you go – page 516 

four l ines f rom the end of  that  paragraph you say:  
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“To the extent  that  Mr Cal lard is insinuat ing 

that  the escalat ions were inf lated I  never 

inf lated any escalat ions I  s imply recorded the 

breakdown etcetera. ”  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And paragraph 57 then deals wi th  208.2 

this t ime a query about foreign exchange component  and you 

essent ia l ly  make the same point  and you rebuff  the 

insinuat ion.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Paragraph 58 deals wi th the costs of  

reduced batch sizes.   You make the same point  and you then 

contest  the insinuat ion.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .   Chair  wi th the background that  I  d id  

also raise the same issues dur ing the negot iat ions wi th my 

superiors.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And 59 and 208.4 deals wi th the local  

content  requirement and so you explain that  and you contest  

the – or you deny the insinuat ion.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   208.5 deals wi th  the side bar calculat ion.   

Essent ia l ly your evidence is the same.  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   208.6 deals wi th  negot iat ion pr ice recon.   

Your evidence is the same.  
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MR LAHER:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And 208.7 re negot iat ion work sheet .  

MR LAHER:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You deal  wi th that  and you dispute the 

insinuat ion.  

MR LAHER:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Then at  paragraph 63 you say that  – or 

perhaps I  can ask you to deal  wi th i t .  

MR LAHER:   So paragraph 63 Chair  deals wi th again the 

insinuat ion that  I  was the pr imary author.  And as I  have 10 

ment ioned earl ier  there were two of  us involved in the 

negot iat ions f rom a f inance perspect ive and six  in the 

evaluat ions.   So again I  deny that  I  was the pr imary author.   

I  was one of  s ix and one of  two.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then f inal ly th is is the last  paragraph 

that  you say you want to deal  wi th  and I  would l ike to get  i t  

done before lunch so that  you could be released.   Paragraph 

64 deals wi th Mr Cal lard’s 211.1 where he says that  you 

were not  forthcoming wi th informat ion.   Would you deal  wi th 

that  please? 20 

MR LAHER:   Sure.   So on paragraph 64 Chai r  and I  am – 

wi th regard to Mr Cal lard ’s insinuat ion that  I  del iberately and 

wi thout  just  cause withheld informat ion f rom him.  I  th ink i t  is  

important  to understand that  f i rst ly as part  of  a  normal 

tender process wi thin Transnet  the rules are you sign a 
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conf ident ia l ly – conf ident ia l  agreement.    

 The rules are and i t  is part  of  a  standard tender 

process you do not  provide any informat ion around that  

tender to anybody that  has not  received express permission 

to get  that  informat ion.  

 Unless that  person has also signed a conf ident ia l i ty  

agreement.   At  that  point  in t ime when I  was deal ing wi th Mr 

Cal lard which was in 2018 I  was just  fo l lowing the ru les in 

terms of  standard Transnet  conf ident ia l i ty rules.   I  s igned the 

agreement.   I f  I  d id  give h im any informat ion which is  10 

conf ident ia l  informat ion to Transnet I  could be held to 

account.  

 So that  is the f i rs t  reason I  could not  give i t  to him.  

The second reason I  could not  give i t  to him is because I  d id 

not  have i t .   How can I  g ive him something I  d id not  have? 

 I  d id not  have the evaluat ion reports at  that  point  in  

t ime.  You wi l l  note in my evidence I  asked for the 

informat ion in June 2018 which is s ix months af ter that  and I  

only received i t  then in June 2018.  

 So Chair  I  mean that  is my response.   I  mean I  to ld  20 

him I  cannot give you conf ident ia l  informat ion and you need 

to ask for i t  through the r ight  channels.  

 Eventual ly he got  i t  through the r ight  channels.   And 

in the evidence I  lead and I  th ink i t  is YL34 I  even provide an 

example of  where we asked for the informat ion f rom Supply 
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Chain Services.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A lr ight  and as I  understand i t  you did not  

want to deal  wi th anything further af ter the end of  paragraph 

64? 

MR LAHER:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr Chairman with your leave could Mr 

Laher be released and then return tomorrow at  ten o ’clock so 

as to afford him an opportuni ty  to  study the evidence given 

by Mr Cal lard in reply to his Rule 3.4 statement?  There is of  

course a t ranscr ipt ion of  that  and I  wi l l  then ask him 10 

quest ions in relat ion to that  tomorrow morning at  ten o’clock.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.   So you wi l l  be 

re leased Mr Laher and then come back tomorrow at  ten 

o’clock to deal  wi th the rest  of  the issues.   

MR LAHER:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much for coming.  

MR LAHER:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are excused.  Mr Myburgh what  is the 

si tuat ion af ter lunch? 

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  the si tuat ion is that  we do have Mr 20 

Cal lard on standby.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  have raised wi th you Mr Chairperson 

whether you wish to hear  f rom Mr Cal lard or s imply to admit  

h is aff idavi t .   You wi l l  recal l  that  Mr Cal lard has f requented 
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th is commission on more than one occasion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   He puts evidence about two things.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   The one is the video and t ranscr ipt ion that  

Mr Laher has al ready deal t  wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   The rest  of  h is  new evidence re lates to  

what he descr ibes as the Regiments pr ice walk.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   That  – that  is al l  he wi l l  test i fy about .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I f  you al low that  and i t  apparent ly as I  

understand i t  he wi l l  not  be more than an hour.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH:   We could f i t  h im in tomorrow i f  that  is 

more convenient  for you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i f  you are incl ined that  i t  should be 

enough to admit  h is aff idavi t  I  would be incl ined towards the 

same thing.   Because as you say he has given evidence 20 

qui te a few t imes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And of  course i f  anything later ar ises that  

we did not  foresee we can always be in touch wi th h im.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Would i t  then be necessary for  you to 
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admit  i t  – i t  is part  of  our – our bundle or what does your – 

what is the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   My – I  am sure i t  can be admit ted as part  

of  one of  these bundles i f  that  is – that  is convenient  but  ja I  

th ink there should be no problem [ ta lk ing over one another] .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I t  is  – yes i t  is Bundle 4[b]  Chairperson.   I t  

is the second last  tag.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Exhibi t  BB4[h] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   And you wi l l  see that  i t  is a short  a ff idavi t .   

There are some annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I t  was signed by Mr Cal lard on the 14t h 

day of  September.   I f  your – the Chairperson requi res us we 

could cal l  Mr Cal lard simply to  conf i rm that  th is is his 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then i t  could be formal ly admit ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja let  us do that .   You are excused Mr 20 

Laher.   You are excused.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  know I  might  be get t ing ahead of  mysel f  I  

do not  know i f  he is  here.   I  know he is coming here at  two 

o’clock I  am not  sure i f  he is st i l l  here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay maybe then we can adjourn and 
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then come back at  two.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And deal  wi th i t  on that  basis.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And deal  wi th i t  on that  basis.    

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   We wi l l  adjourn for lunch and 

resume at  f ive past  two.   We adjourn.  

 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  forgot  that  I  had sa id we would resume 

at  f ive past  two,  so I  was ready at  two o’clock but  somebody 

reminded me.  Okay are we ready? 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes we are thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Chai rperson this is Mr Francis Cal lard 

who has test i f ied before you on a few occasions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good af ternoon, Mr Cal lard.  

MR CALLARD :    [Microphone not  work ing]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Thank you for coming back.  20 

MR CALLARD :    Thank you very much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   H’m?   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr Cal lard,  could I  ask you to turn to 

the second last  tab of  54B?  Mr Chairperson,  I  do not  know i f  

you. . .  i f  i t  is necessary for Mr Cal lard to take the oath? 



21 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 288 
 

Page 119 of 122 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes.   Let  him.. .  ja,  let  us do that .  

REGISTRAR :    P lease your fu l l  names for the record.  

MR CALLARD :    Francis Quinton Cal lard.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you have any object ion in taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR CALLARD :    No.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you consider the oath to  be binding on 

your conscience? 

MR CALLARD :    I  do.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive,  10 

wi l l  be the t ruth,  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth?  I f  so,  p lease raise up your r ight  hand and say,  so help 

me God.  

MR CALLARD :    So help me God.  

FRANCIS QUINTON CALLARD :   (d .s.s. )  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   You may be seated.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Chairperson.   Mr Cal lard,  

would you go to the second last  tab of  Bundle 4B, please? 

MR CALLARD :    I  have that .   BB4(h).  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So can you then turn please to page 20 

795? 

MR CALLARD :    795.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  is document headed:  Fourth 

Supplementary Statement.   Is that  the statement of  yours? 

MR CALLARD :    I t  is.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Could I  ask you please to turn forward 

to page 802? 

MR CALLARD :    802.   Sorry.   I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Did you sign the statement under oath 

on the 14t h day of  September this year? 

MR CALLARD :    I  d id.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And at tached to your  statement is a 

ser ies of  annexures.   They are set  out  and l isted at  page 803 

to 804.   And those annexures then run f rom 805 al l  the way 

to 920.   Would you conf i rm that? 10 

MR CALLARD :    I  do.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr Chai rperson,  wi th your leave.   I  

would ask that  Mr Cal lard’s fourth supplementary statement 

commencing at  page 795 be admit ted as Exhibi t  BB4(h).  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   And for the sake of  

completeness.   You conf i rm Mr Cal lard that  the contents of  

th is fourth supplementary statement are to the best  of  your  

recol lect ion t rue and correct .  

MR CALLARD :    Sorry,  Mr Chai r.   I . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you conf i rm the correctness of  the 20 

contents of  your fourth supplementary statement? 

MR CALLARD :    I  conf i rm the correctness thereof ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr Myburgh,  i t  is BB4, F 

point . . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB4(h),  Chai rperson.  



21 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 288 
 

Page 121 of 122 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Only? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   The fourth supplementary 

statement by Mr Francis Quinton Cal lard,  start ing at  page 

795 is admit ted as Exhibi t  BB4(h).  

FOURTH SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT OF MR FRANCIS 

QUINTON CALLARD HANDED UP AND MARKED AS 

EXHIBIT BB4(h)  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Chairperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you very much, Mr Cal lard.   I  hope 10 

we wi l l  not  need to ask again.   [ laughing]    

MR CALLARD :    [ laughing]    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [ laughing]    

CHAIRPERSON :    You have been coming here for too many 

t imes.   But  i f  there are compel l ing reasons,  we wi l l  ask you 

but  I  hope not .   But  thank you very much.   

MR CALLARD :    I  am always avai lable.   Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   You are excused.  

MR CALLARD :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then tomorrow Mr Myburgh,  we have 20 

Mr Laher at  ten,  who might  take how long,  do you think? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    He wi l l  not  take long.   I  do not  suspect  

Mr Chai rperson.   And af ter  that ,  the next  wi tness we have is  

Mr Mhlango who is due on Fr iday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Okay.   Okay al r ight .   Okay we 
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wi l l  then adjourn for the day and we wi l l  resume tomorrow at  

ten.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:    A l l  r ise 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 22 OCTOBER 2020  
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